A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, June 26, 2012
At
5:15 p.m.
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2™ floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Traverse City Light and Power

1131 Hastings Street

Stephanie Tvardek
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 932-4543

Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940

Posting Date: 6-22-12

4:00 p.m.




Light and Power Board 2 June 26, 2012
Regular Meeting

AGENDA

Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call
Recognition of Linda Johnson

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together
to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board, staff or the public
may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefirom and placed elsewhere on the agenda
Jor full discussion. Such requests will be automatically respected. If an item is not removed from the
consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses on the agenda is approved by a single Board action

adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 12, 2012. (Approval
recommended)

b. Consideration of adopting a Health Care Savings Program Resolution, which approves
the Light & Power Department’s participation in the MERS Health Care Savings
Program, which is an employee savings vehicle for eligible medical care expenses.
(Adoption recommended) (Kuschell)

Items removed from the Consent Calendar

a.

b.

3. Old Business

a. Pine Street Overhead to Underground Distribution Conversion project authorization.
(Rice/Dine)
b. Consideration of authorizing an Interconnection Agreement between METC and TCL&P

for the East Hammond Substation Project. (Rice/Dine)

C. Consideration of adopting a Resolution to Approve METC Easements for the East
Hammond Substation Project. (Rice/Dine)

4. New Business

a. Consideration of approving a Hall Street Tenant Lease. (Rice/Arends)

b. Consideration of adopting the Executive Directors Hiring Authority Policy. (Rice)




Light and Power Board 3 June 26, 2012
Regular Meeting

5. Appointments

None.

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
b. From Staff.

1. Discussion re: LWB&L annual power purchase. (Rice/Feahr)

2. Discussion re: Solar Rate. (Cooper)
c. From Board.
1. Discussion of Public Utilities Element for the City Master Plan. (Board)

7. Public Comment

/st




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, June 12, 2012

Board Members -
Present: Barbara Budros, Jim Carruthers, Mike Coco, Bob Spence, John Taylor,
Patrick McGuire
Absent: John Snodgrass
Ex Officio Member -
Present: R. Ben Bifoss
Others: Ed Rice, W. Peter Doren, Tim Arends, Stebhanie Tvardek, Tom Olney,

Jessica Wheaton, Denise Kgu_schell, Jim Cooper
The meeting was called to order at 5:15 p.m. by Ch‘airman McGuire.

Item 2 on the Agenda being Consent Calendar

Moved by Carruthers, seconded by Taylor that the followmg actions, as recommended on the
Consent Calendar portion of the Agenda, be apploved

a. Minutes of the Executlve Director Rev1ew Ad Hoc Commlttee Meeting and Regular
Meeting of May 22, 2012. “ . s

b. 2012-13 Insurance Renewal
CARRIED unanlmously (Snodg1 ass absent)

Items removed from the Consent Calendar

None.

Item 3 on the Agenda being Qldx_Business

3(a). Consideration of the Bargaining Unit Agreement.

Moved by Coco, seconded by Spence, that the Light & Power Board enter into Closed Session to
consider the negotiation of a Collective Bargaining Agreement for the Traverse City Light &
Power Department Bargaining Unit.

Roll Call Vote:
Yes — Budros, Carruthers, Coco, Spence, Taylor, McGuire
No — None

CARRIED unanimously. (Snodgrass absent)

Board entered Closed Session at 5:19 p.m.
Board returned to Open Session at 6:27 p.m.




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 June 12,2012

Moved by Coco, seconded by Spence, that the Light & Power Board Chairman execute a
Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Traverse City Light & Power Department and the
Utility Workers Union of America, Local 295 effective July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2017,
subject to approval as to its substance by the Executive Director; and

That the Resolution for Adopting Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan

Defined Benefits Program (other than DB Component or Hybrid Program) which will reduce the
benefit plan multiplier for new hires in the LP Division 12 be adopted.

CARRIED unanimously. (Snodgrass absent)

3(b). Consideration of authorizing a Purchase Order for the LED Overhead Roadway Lighting
Project.

The following individuals addressed the Board:

Ed Rice, Executive Director
Tom Olney, Operations Manager

Moved by Carruthers, seconded by Coco, that the Board authorize the Executive Director to
issue a Purchase Order to Resco for the purchase of 225 LED Cobla Head type fixtures, in the
amount of $103,185. i

Budros departed the meeting at 6:32 p m.

CARRIED unanimously. (Budros Snodgrass absent)

Item 4 on the Agenda ‘belng New Busmess .
4(a). Discussion of 2012 Customer Survey

The followmg 1nd1v1duals addressed the Boa1d

Je essica Wheaton, Malketlng and Commumty Relations Coordinator
Budros retufned,to the meeting at 6:37 p.m.

The Board reviewed and discussed; the 2012 Customer Survey. No action taken by the Board.

Item 5 on the Agenda bemg Appointments
None.

Item 6 on the Agenda being Reports and Communications

A. From Legal Counsel.
1. W. Peter Doren spoke re: street vacation for Munson Hospital extension lawsuit.
B. From Staff.

1. Ed Rice gave an update on the Bay Street Project.
2. Jessica Wheaton spoke re: BW-22 customer communications.




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 June 12, 2012

3. Ed Rice made an announcement re: the All L&P Employee meeting scheduled for
June 28, 2012,

C. From Board.

1. Barbara Budros spoke re: the Planning Commissions public utilities element for
the City Master Plan. She suggested this item be placed on the next Regular
Meeting agenda for discussion.

2. Mike Coco and Jim Carruthers spoke re: the recent tour of the Campbell 3

Generating Plant.
3. Barbara Budros spoke re: the MLUI Energy Efficiency Summit scheduled for

Thursday, June 14, 2012.

Item 7 on the Agenda being Public Comment

No one from the public commented.

There being no objection, Chairman McGuire declated the meeting adjourned at 7:04 p.m.

.. Edward E. Rice, Secretary
/st - LIGHT AND POWER BOARD




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 26, 2012

Q‘ST. 19]2

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board e
From: Edward E. Rice, Executive Director ;’ ; JL
Date: June 21, 2012

Subject: Health Care Savings Program

Attached is a memo from Denise Kuschell, Human Resource Specialist, recommending
that the Light & Power Board adopt a Resolution that would authorize conversion of the
current employee Health Care Savings Plan with ICMA to a similar Plan through MERS.

This item is on the consent calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Staff recommends
approval of this Resolution as the change will have no financial impact on L&P or cause
any additional reporting efforts by L&P or City personnel once fully implemented. Approval
of this item on the consent calendar means you agree with staff's recommendation.

If removed from the consent calendar it should be placed as a New Business item. If after

Board discussion you agree with staff's recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY 5

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE THE MERS HEALTH CARE SAVINGS PROGRAM
UNIFORM RESOLUTION, WHICH TRANSFERS EMPLOYEES’ SAVINGS PROGRAMS
FOR HEALTH SAVINGS PURPOSES FROM THE ICMA TO MERS, WITH THE
RESOLUTION TO BE EFFECTIVE UPON FINAL CONVERSION BETWEEN ICMA AND
MERS.




TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Edward E. Rice, Executive Director sl
From: Denise Kuschell, Human Resource Specialist ?

Date: June 21, 2012 -
Subject: MERS Health Care Savings Program Uniform Resolution

As you are aware, Light & Power (L&P) provides a VantageCare Retirement Health
Savings (RHS) Plan through ICMA Retirement Corporation to allow current employees
a way to save for retiree medical expenses with pre-tax dollars. At separation of
employment, this tax free medical expense savings plan can be used for the employee,
their spouse and any IRS qualifying dependent. However, under IRS guidelines, when
an employee or retiree does not have a spouse or a qualifying dependent, upon death
the money reverts back to the plan.

L&P learned from the City that the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (MERS)
offers a substantially similar product called the Health Care Savings Program (HCSP).
The main difference with the HCSP through MERS is that upon death if the employee
does not have a spouse or qualifying dependent, the money does not revert back to the
Plan, but rather it can be left to any designated beneficiary for taxable medical expense
reimbursements.

If approved by the Board, over the course of the next two and a half months, L&P will
be in the process of switching its current VantageCare RHS Plan through ICMA
Retirement Corporation over to the MERS HCSP. The actual effective date of the
conversion has yet to be determined due to various steps that have to be taken
between ICMA’s conversion team and MERS’s conversion team. We anticipate this to
be sometime in August. However, the first step in the process is to have the L&P Board
approve participation and implementation of the HCSP through MERS by adopting the
HCSP Uniform Resolution.

Please forward the attached Uniform Resolution Adopting the MERS HCSP onto the
L&P Board for their consideration of approval. Also note, the City presented the same
Resolution to the City Commission at its June 18, 2012 meeting which was adopted by
the Commission.




MERS Health Care Savings Program @MEKS

Uniform Resolution Municipal Employees’ Retirement System

WHEREAS, the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (“MERS”) Plan Document of 1996, effective
October 1, 1996, authorized the Municipal Employees’ Retirement Board (“Board”) to establish additional
programs including but not limited to defined benefit and defined contribution program (MERS Plan
Document Section 36(2)(a)); MCL 38.1536(2)(a)).

1134 Municipal Way Lansing, MI 48917 | 800.767.2308 | Fax 517.703.9711

WHEREAS, the Board has authorized MERS’ establishment of the health care savings program (“HCSP” or
“Program”), which a participating municipality or court, or another eligible public employer that is a political
subdivision of the State which constitutes a “municipality” under MERS Plan Document Section 2B(4); MCL
38.1502b(2) (“Eligible Employer”), may adopt for its Eligible Employees.

WHEREAS, MERS has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service to be a taxqualified “governmental
plan” and trust under section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and all trust assets within MERS
reserves are therefore exempt from taxation under Code section 501(a) (IRS Letter of Favorable Determination
dated June 15, 2005).

WHEREAS, the Board has established a governmental trust (the “Trust Fund”) to hold the assets of the HCSP,
which Trust Fund shall be administered under the discretion of the Board as fiduciary, directly by (or through a
combination of) MERS or MERS’ duly-appointed Program Administrator.

WHEREAS, 1999 PA 149, the Public Employee Health Care Fund Investment Act, MCL 38.1211 et seq.
(“PA 149”) provides for the creation by a public corporation of a public employee health care fund, and its
“administration, investment, and management, in order to accumulate funds to provide for the funding of
health benefits for retirees and beneficiaries.

WHEREAS, a separate MERS health care trust fund created under PA 149 also constitutes a governmental
trust established by a public corporation (“municipality”) as an Eligible Employer, provided that all such
employers shall be the State of Michigan, its political subdivisions, and any public entity the income of which
is excluded from gross income under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code; provided further, that the PA
149 trust shall not accept assets from any defined benefit health account established under Section 401(h) of
the Internal Revenue Code.

WHEREAS, the Board acts as investment fiduciary for the pooled assets of each MERS participating
municipality and court enrolled in MERS Defined Benefit Plan, Health Care Savings Program, the Retiree
Health Funding Vehicle, and the Investment Services Pool Program, on whose behalf MERS performs all

plan administration and investment functions, and such participating municipalities and courts have full
membership, representation and voting rights at the Annual Meeting as provided under Plan Section 45; MCL
38.1545.

WHEREAS, the Board also acts as investment fiduciary for those participating employers who are non-MERS
participating municipalities and courts that have adopted the MERS Health Care Savings Program, Retiree
Health Funding Vehicle, or Investment Service Pool Program, and such entities are not accorded membership,
representation or voting rights provided to MERS participating municipalities and courts at the Annual
meeting under Plan Section 45; MCL 38.1545.

Form MD-169 (version 2011-07-22) Page 1 of 4
Y T e e T T R T s 0 R O B o st i



MERS Health Care Savings Program Uniform Resolution
R S R T S R R R R N T N R R S S B T I ey

WHEREAS, adoption of this Uniform Resolution and Participation Agreement (the “Uniform Resolution”) by
each Eligible Employer is necessary and required in order that the benefits available under the MERS HCSP
may be extended.

o It is expressly agreed and understood as an integral and nonseverable part of extension or
continuation of coverage under this HCSP Resolution that Section 43B of the MERS Plan
Document shall not apply to this Uniform Resolution Adopting MERS HCSP, the Participation
Agreement, the Trust Plan Document, the Trust Agreement, and their administration or
interpretation.

o In the event any alteration of the language, terms or conditions stated in this Uniform
Resolution Adopting MERS HCSP is made or occurs, under MERS Plan Document Section
43B or other plan provision or other law, it is expressly recognized that MERS and the Board,
as fiduciary of the MERS Plan and its trust reserves, and whose authority is nondelegable, shall
have no obligation or duty: to administer (or to have administered) the Trust; or to continue
administration by the Program Administrator or by MERS directly.

WHEREAS, concurrent with this HCSP Uniform Resolution, and as a continuing obligation, this governing
body has completed, approved, and submitted to MERS documents necessary for participation in and
implementation of the HCSP. This obligation applies to any documents deemed necessary to the operation of
the Trust by the Program Administrator.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the governing body adopts (or readopts) the MERS HCSP as
provided below.

SECTION 1. HCSP PARTICIPATION

EFFECTIVE , 20 , (to be known as the ADOPTION DATE) the

MERS HCSP is hereby adopted by the T(‘(L\IQ(‘J)(L Q\k‘k\ '—’\0 M pDM—Q& b.QpﬂV""I’V‘QNCl'

(MERS municipality or court orether ehgldle employer

(A) CONTRIBUTIONS shall be as allowed and specified in the MERS Health Care Savings
Program Adoption Agreement. Basic Employer Contributions, Mandatory Salary Reduction
Contributions, Mandatory Leave Conversion Contributions, and Post-Tax Employee
Contributions, shall be remitted pursuant to MERS by the Eligible Employer, and credited to the
Eligible Employer’s separate fund within the MERS Trust Fund.

(B) INVESTMENT of funds accumulated and held in the Health Care Savings Program Trust Fund
shall be held in a separate reserve and invested on a pooled basis by MERS subject to the
Public Employee Retirement System Investment Act (“PERSIA”), 1965 PA 314, as provided by
MERS Plan Document Section 39; MCL 38.1539, and PA 149.

(©) THE ELIGIBLE EMPLOYER shall abide by the terms of the HCSP, including all investment,
administration, and service agreements, and all applicable provisions of the Code and other
law. It is affirmed that no assets from any defined benefit health account established under
Section 401(h) of the Internal Revenue Code shall be transferred to, or accepted by, MERS.

Form MD-169 (version 2011-07-22) Page 2 of 4
T e T R R e e e R e N R T T P o

10



MERS Health Care Savings Program Uniform Resolution
R O L B e T R T B e L T B R R e B R R S R S O i e Treey]

SECTION 2. IMPLEMENTATION DIRECTIONS FOR MERS

(A) The governing body of this Eligible Employer desires that all assets placed in its MERS HCSP
Trust Fund (as a sub-fund within all pooled HCSP trust funds with MERS) be administered by
MERS, which shall act as investment fiduciary with all powers provided under Public Employee
Retirement System Investment Act, pursuant to PA 149, all applicable provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code and other relevant law.

B) The governing body desires, and MERS upon its approval of this Resolution agrees, that all
funds accumulated and held in the MERS HCSP Trust Fund shall be invested and managed by
MERS within the collective and commingled investment of all HCSP funds held in trust for all
Eligible Employers.

(©) All monies in the MERS HCSP Trust Fund (and any earnings thereon, positive or negative)
shall be held and invested for the sole purpose of paying health care benefits for the exclusive
benefit of “Eligible Employees” who shall constitute “qualified persons” who have retired or
separated from employment with the Eligible Employer, and for any expenses of administration,
and shall not be used for any other purpose, and shall not be distributed to the State.

(D) The Eligible Employer will fund on a defined contribution, individual account, basis its MERS
HCSP Trust sub-fund to provide funds for health care benefits for “Eligible Employees” who
shall constitute “qualified persons.” Participation in and any coverage under HCSP shall not
constitute nor be construed to constitute an “accrued financial benefit” under Article 9 Section
24 of the Michigan Constitution of 1963.

(E) The Eligible Employer designates and incorporates as “Eligible Employees” who shall
constitute “qualified persons” under this HCSP Resolution those who are “Eligible Employees
as defined in the HCSP Participation Agreement under this HCSP.

(F) The Eligible Employer may designate the appropriate employer contacts who shall receive
necessary reports, notices, etc.; shall act on behalf of the Eligible Employer; and may delegate
any administrative duties relating to the Fund to appropriate departments.

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS HCSP UNIFORM RESOLUTION

This Resolution shall have no legal effect until a certified copy of this adopting Resolution is filed with MERS,
and MERS determines that all necessary requirements under MERS Plan Document Section 36(2)(a), 1999
PA 149 and other relevant laws, and this Resolution have been met. Upon MERS’ determination that all
necessary documents have been submitted, MERS shall record its formal approval upon this Resolution, and
return a copy to the Eligible Employer’s designated primary contact.

In the event an amendatory resolution or other action by the Eligible Employer is required by MERS, such
Resolution or action shall be deemed effective as of the date of the initial Resolution or action where concurred
in by this governing body and MERS (and the Program Administrator if necessary). Section 54 of the MERS Plan
Document shall apply to this Resolution and all acts performed under its authority. The terms and conditions of
this Resolution supersede and stand in place of any prior resolution, and its terms are controlling.

Form MD-169 (version 2011-07-22) Page 3 of 4
e e e P e 3 D A S L S U A 8 S A 02 e R S e e a3 8 s b i

11



MERS Health Care Savings Program Uniform Resolution
A S e T A i S P R I B R R S A s S G B PR A S IRl sa

I hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the Uniform Resolution Adopting The MERS Health
Care Savings Program, adopted at the official meeting held by the governing body of this municipality:

On , 20

(Signature of authorized official)

Please send MERS fully executed copy of:
1. HCSP Uniform Resolution (this form, MD-169)
2. HCSP Participation Agreement (MD-170)
3. Certified minutes stating Governing Body approval, and a copy of the union contract language and/

or personnel policy

Received and Approved by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan

Dated: , 20

(Authorized MERS signatory)

Form MD-169 (version 2011-07-22) Page 4 of 4

12




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 26, 2012

Q‘ST. 19]?

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board

From: Glen Dine, Chief Engineer L@

Date: June 21, 2012

Subject: Project Authorization Request — Pine Street Overhead to Underground

Distribution Conversion

At the May 22" L&P Board meeting Staff presented a packet of information and
requested authorization from the L&P Board for staff to proceed with the future conversion
of overhead distribution facilities to underground along Pine Street and State Street in
order to coordinate with the City’s Pine/State Street improvement project scheduled to
begin in the Fall 2012. As streets and sidewalks are being redone by the City, TCL&P
would be installing conduit systems for future use.

There was concern expressed over the future commitment to construct the pedestrian
bridge across the Boardman River. The bridge would be required for TCL&P to further
extend the conduit system across the Boardman River and tie into existing distribution
facilities located behind Hall Street Substation at a later date (DDA Budgeted Funds for
2012-13 — reference Memorandum Letter from Brian Crough, dated June 19, 2012). The
discussion focused on the future use (and expenditure) of the conduit system to be
installed this fall and what the impact would be should the pedestrian bridge installation not
take place in the future.

There was also discussion on the timing of the project and the costs associated with each
phase. As presented in May, the “overall project” is anticipated to take place over a three
year period.

In the attachments, staff has provided preliminary details on what the 13.8kv distribution
circuit conduit system would generally consist of in the street area, equipment areas and
easements involved, and a revised Project Timeline and Expenditure sheet in the Project
Authorization Request package.

From an engineering standpoint, the project needs to be developed, planned, and
designed for in its entirety to meet “distribution system” needs.

13




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 26, 2012

In terms of the schedule and cost, it is anticipated that the “overall project” will take place
over a three year period.

The 2012 cost estimate is $ 503,000 - Conduit installation

The 2013 cost estimate is $ 120,000 - Conduit installation

The 2014 cost estimate is $ 816,000 - Electrical cable and equipment installation
and overhead removals

Some assumptions in the cost estimates are as follows:
- no allowance for environmental conditions
- material costs are influenced by market prices for raw materials such as

copper
- construction costs will vary based on site conditions, contractor availability

and market conditions.

As conveyed to L&P staff yesterday, after the City held a preconstruction meeting in an
effort to determine contractor scheduling for the street project, the City’s project is on a
tight schedule and coordination could prove difficult in order to accommodate the amount
of time needed for trenching and installation of TCL&P conduits this fall. Schedules and
coordination are currently under discussion. This could impact TCL&P construction costs
or the scope of the project.

If the Board wishes to proceed with the Pine Street Overhead to Underground
Conversion project so as to coordinate with various City projects, the following motion is
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ;

THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD AUTHORIZES STAFF TO PROCEED WITH
THE PINE STREET OVERHEAD TO UNDERGROUND CONVERSION PROJECT; AND

THAT THE COMPETITIVE BIDDING PROCESS BE WAIVED, AS RECOMMENDED BY
THE CITY MANAGER, AND THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BE AUTHORIZED TO SEEKA
BID FROM AND ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH ELMER’S CRANE & DOZER FOR
UNDERGROUND CONDUIT INSTALLATION IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED THE
PROJECT ESTIMATE OF $265,650, WITH CONTRACT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS
TO FORM BY COUNSEL.

14




«

-

B\ TRAVERSE CITY

&S LIGHT & POWER

Q0
e

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST

&

Project Name: Pine Street — Overhead to Underground Distribution Conversion

Date of Board Presentation/Consideration: June 26, 2012 Resubmitted
Budgeted in Capital Plan: Yes CIP: $1,000,000

Objective:

Target Completion date of November 1, 2013 for conduit installation only. Date for installation
of underground cable and removal of overhead facilities TBD, but likely to occur in 2014.

Project Description:

The project generally consists of the conversion of 13.8kV distribution lines from overhead to
underground along Pine Street. In 2012, the focus will be to install a 13.8kv distribution conduit
system in coordination with the CITY Pine Street and State Street project areas.

Also, a limited amount of street light/decorative light conduit would be installed. The CITY is
NOT planning on installing a “streetscape” project and will be installing new sidewalk only with
no new low level lighting or brick pavers.

In 2013, with the pedestrian bridge being constructed across the Boardman River (per DDA
memo), further conduit would be installed to extend the conduit system north across the
Boardman River and tie into existing facilities behind Hall Street Substation.

Once the conduit system is fully connected, the underground cable can be installed and put into
service. Only then can the overhead facilities be removed. Installation of the 13.8kv cable and
overhead removals is likely to occur in 2014.

The major distribution equipment consists of padmount switchgear and transformers,
approximately two new distribution riser poles, conduit, manholes, and various size electric
cables.

Project Purpose and Necessity (Problem We Are Solving):

The major purpose is for the conversion of overhead to underground distribution facilities.
Project need and timing is based on the CITY’s Pine/State Street project planned to begin after
Labor Day 2012, AND construction of the pedestrian bridge (2013) across the Boardman River.
Conduit installation would be coordinated with these CITY projects.

15




2

?@E’P TRAVERSE CITY

s LIGHT & POWER

€@

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST

G

Project Benefits:
The overhead to underground conversion of distribution facilities will:

- coordinate with CITY projects

- eliminate portions of the overhead distribution poles and wire

- continue to support existing and future load growth in a critical section of
TCL&P’s service area

Other Alternatives:

None viable as the conversion involves critical distribution circuits exiting Hall Street
Substation. Circuit routing is confined to existing Street right-of-way. Routing is impacted by
the physical location of Hall Street Substation, the Boardman River, and routing of the existing
distribution grid.

Timing of Project (Why Now):

This project has been in the capital plan for several years, waiting on coordination with CITY
projects. CITY projects involved include the Pine/State Street project (Fall 2012) and the
pedestrian bridge across the Boardman River (2013 project). Conduit installation would begin in
the Fall 2012 and continue through portions of 2013 in order to coordinate with CITY projects.

16




PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST

g"'g. TRAVERSE CITY
S

2w LIGHT & POWER

Project Timeline and Expenditures (REVISED)

2012 DISTRIBUTION CONDUIT INSTALLATION

ITEMS QTY
Conduit LS
Manholes 4

Handholes & Box Pads LS
Construction Contract

Survey

Engineering Design

Inspections

Contingency (15%)

COST
$22,000
$18,000
$12,000
$153,000*
$30,000
$68,000%*
$45,000%*
$35,000
Total $383,000

2012 STREETSCAPE CONDUIT INSTALLATION

ITEMS QTY
Conduit LS
Handholes 34

Construction Contract
Engineering Design
Inspections
Contingency (15%)

COST
$8,000
$6,000
$78,000%*
$9,000*
$5,000*
$14.000
Total $120,000

2013 DISTRIBUTION CONDUIT INSTALLATION

ITEMS QTY
Conduit LS
Handholes & Box Pads LS
Construction Contract

Inspections

Contingency (15%)

2014 ELECTRICAL CABLE & EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION

COST
$11,000
$6,000
$70,000%*
$20,000*
$13.000
Total $120,000

ITEMS QTY
15kV Cable

Switchgear & Cabinets
Transformers 2

Elbows, Terminations, Indicators
Construction Contract

COST
$240,000*
$110,000*
$16,000
$54,000%*
$240,000*

EXPECTED DATE
July 2012

July 2012

July 2012

August 2012

July 2012

July 2012

July 2012

EXPECTED DATE
July 2012

July 2012

August 2012

July 2012

July 2012

EXPECTED DATE
December 2012
December 2012
January 2013
January 2013

EXPECTED DATE
October 2013
October 2013
October 2013
December 2013
January 2014

17




@\ TRAVERSE CITY

€6
(e

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST

$SY LIGHT & POWER

Engineering Design $24,000%* July 2012
Inspections $32,000* January 2014
Contingency (15%) $100,000

Total $816,000

Preliminary Engineering Cost Estimate: $1.439 M

Items requiring Board approval (marked *) include purchase of equipment, electric cable,
construction contracts and professional engineering design/inspection services.

Critical Items

The most critical item in this project is the ability to obtain easements on private and City
property for the installation of conduit, manholes and equipment. TCL&P has prepared draft
easement requirements and will work through the CITY and others in order to secure areas
required for equipment placement.

This is a preliminary cost estimate. The cost estimates do NOT include any low level lighting
fixtures or concrete bases as a “streetscape” is not planned. The conduit associated with the low
level lighting would be available for future use.

There is NO allowance for environmental investigation or to mitigate environmental conditions
should they be encountered during construction.

Funding associated with the pedestrian bridge to be provided by others.

Material costs, particularly for electrical cable are subject to raw material market prices (copper).

Some of the engineering and material costs or Board approvals may get shifted in the schedule.

The construction coordination with the CITY’s project will reduce the amount of time TCL&P
(contractor) will have for conduit installation. This may increase contractor construction costs or
the project scope.

Financing Method:
Cash from TCL&P fund balance as planned for. Bonding will not be required.
Additional Revenues:

Additional revenues will be based on any future load growth that may occur in the downtown
area that would be served from the distribution grid being impacted.

18




QUG rRavERSE cITY
S

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST "J»)‘% LIGHT & POWER

Impact on O&M Expenses:

Existing labor force will perform normal monthly maintenance and connect new or upgraded
customer service requests. On a year by year basis normal O&M is minimal. Once the
underground cable begins to experience failures then cable replacement cost will become more
significant as will replacement of aging major padmount switchgear.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends L&P Board approval of the installation of conduit system, underground cable
installation and removal of overhead facilities with the timing based upon coordination with
related CITY projects.

Attachments:

Drawings of project area.

19




Memorandum

To: Ed Rice, Executive Director
Traverse City Light & Power
5%

From: Bryan J. Crough, Executive Directé@{[

Re: Pedestrian Bridge Front to Warehouse District

Date: June 19, 2012

l understand from Tim Lodge, City Engineer, that you are interested in some sort of
commitment from the Downtown Development Authority regarding the planned pedestrian
bridge from Front Street to the Warehouse District. As envisioned since 1997, the bridge would
span the river near J & S Hamburg and allow for Light & Power to carry out the undergrounding
project envisioned from the sub-station to at least Front Street,

In conjunction with the planned improvements on West Front, Pine and State Street, the DDA
has earmarked sufficient funds in the 2012-13 budget to construct the pedestrian bridge.

Let me know if you need anything else.

cc: R. Ben Bifoss, City Manager

Tim Lodge, City Engineer

20




(T

ETNE:sver)

#70Hd

Py

HOLOINNOD NIVYLSTAd LOMLSIA ISNOHIHYM
ALID JISHIAVYL 4O ALID

LNOY "M p2L

AYM NYIRILSIQZd

LNOAAISNI

ONIGTING
T340 ONLUSIXT

Oud "M S0E
LOTINVYOVA

21



£ 3° |
AV DALY N D

SUTIHE 2 0

THANGIRIOR
TIVIILUIA
teAvor,

133HS

JT=04d 8 NYId
NOLLONYLSNOOIY L33YLS JUVIS % ANIS -
UL ONMVEG

Gl 'ALOT b H YOS

wies
sel6s
U
£T166
s
| or69
£6:455 |
463 |
16
5169 |
TiE
465
125
o
o6
55
{5
X
£55 |

§
_

e
[P
L
L7
e
A
f:310

| yezes
| 8
| b
| o
o
| e1-ess |
Zrses
| zeses
P
A
| cevae
v
3
e
|_sress
| 2178
aus
| 01868
eiver

¥BIGY I "ALIO ISUIAVEL

. “HAY NVAQRYOS 001
INSWLAVLRT INNIINIONT
AL SSUTAVHL 20 ALID

T 7 pOe DAY MU T R
CBAE 1s0rzl ene vest

QAT TWES THE VHt

TSN G SNTINGN LAV NG,

TV VIOLEANDN THIAVA 2EININOD
FOVTID ORI GV IDRIAG

HEHI 0 ONGD v X VMIGHD.
SIS SNCS AMITUNON AVMEAIND
fmm st K28 BHED AHITUKON AVMTIAING |

HEHHG DNBD WWAMAGIC
P ™1 oy T
TIONTG D100 ANIAHAGN ApDAE,

T R
e VDN NG Sy |

QNACOR S0 LT DNGD “HILIND GRY RS

¥ 113 SO0 AZLIND CHv T

HON 0ROV ALVOTUDDY

T TSV VS NOEY,

¥3 1 30V "1V *4dDINNE W Vik

e S 2 YOG TANA VD
HOMI ZE X HONI &) “dva 3ATY
0 130 Wi Ot ZE @ NIV HRIVA
OO IR ALV,
T D S v
3 20v3 'LEANOY YO0 DIvD
PP G e

HEEREE

W

1
[e ekl

o)
g

:::S§l

|

L

ST RIS O VDR DIV OAGIA,

DOKE THOHD HOIIRVALL VI L AVAINYE

& CIE ONO T AD4ERVEL OV ARVIINVE
- YIS ARD S Y

ENISVS 01 5 WIAS SUNLONYLY AUVAINYG.

‘SIOHNT AVLNYE VIO 10D Y

G N8y BHNEDNM10

BEEER

- ST HINI S SHAIEOMLE 0.
¥) W LTETRINTR S 10 AR |
BiL %) T RO T BRI
TR ORI 25 WAk |
NS TAa 11T

T
[MEWRG | T

VTS B4 SO G ES
. .
kB35 418 LYV 3410207 STy iy SOV ASSS
NS 0 6Ll 1135 T TS GRS ST
B oy muemy
(12002 )

saver

o0

ovoy

e B

[ e I\L.‘.I\\
] S SOV
%
1% warvisn L7 R

T

G-

]
m-z]sws

AL ATXIA

Iy
_{rered
SEs]

Tr YIS ORE VIO O

o

oo3ia,

0 1330 v arad

jomtanmaenoovig » meoRABoNIGIGMNN

PN ov e i g 0 HYI4 QUYQNVID SO QL SYRATY adz.u.:x%::z/@ 13

T 33K 230 TUYLIC NOUANCURIN ) »

i

ot ieions e
. 3
I |

1EONLDIB108 = I AN

+ {0 M08 AN
Pty
14.£02 180T VLD
VI T HNG dold

. = 1

{ana.ohTer w Wi
{aAd 01010 m 3 A0
@A alarieza Tl
iosgany N .

uswiegvie - e
ok kG Xa

N
SR

X

S

{30 FITLVSD 00 M MY
(aAd 0} Bro0n = W s g

_—

MO TN VIS . -
ViG> 0K RGO . e

. .
ol B~ 'l

]
1
i
[
I
I
WV Iy yin 1
t
i
t
t
]
t

I

g

w §

By i

38

&
"‘E\“t\;’.__‘ g

S

W.\ L

=
o

‘ e

- ]
VIS DIHAVED

L2 ATTY
“DA0 ONILID
IO HENNOD B2 46
O NOBEONNOA

Lol

7

VIC 7 TaYS HGC WO
R ooy yous L
e .
- : qsa.e.éﬁ \—
iy BB 14 i e
! S

SR

e L TN

= T e

M w14/ T A WA

=

POy e YTt e

ﬁ%§§§§§&§t§

7

\mbna MINHNL

NE

_‘w,\\h gl
_\\mm B g

S
&

et ok
3 ¥

£ K HL0cs 2 e doue

i
1 ]
0 T T d !
3 MEXT BT H H i HUIACD '
140 11000« A AN '
0 R - ! [ENwrprashga {
v T . t At |
2 e H H I 5 222 G0 VIG a3z H
T 3 VO T .r = 1 . YI.ZYBLY WG UG w0k MYNTINZANOR [
0 S ere i 1 | I . SUBAVS TLTHONOD 1
D Voo [ i b} ! . : Iuan0D
o T e ! b5 i = ! 203 05en ‘“
> v NS e é .
(o — e sy T &3 i
[ T Vi - NI LTS 0 5 oA 1 o 3408 'gpe0 VAD R kN
i W RECK] m..nwo u.uﬁm%..;sz, ! o “ Iz I Wiy TS UL BT Y 1 ]
x| T G (U AW [ Laead0 ¥ bt »3 R Kol _ 1 o ) gy
v | vy P LR ] % w W AN {dALZ L3NG 0110 Z2g) 3
R | | Y et |~ tuban| SE S s vadana Eonani i VIO DAY W | e
s SR Y04 B 10 SIVAAVREAMA CUVRIIES b o b B et B H i 2
' A i

7
90 Vi
0.2 'S0EK 2AD M uoke

0950 17
XORIATYA

= .
WHEASE T ™~
]
G2 3
awazg &t
PUrY

M
VLY




S
VYV D2eYd AD

CLITHE 33 a0
. Seab AL = HETVOS
i IR I | ] T [ 1 o ! ] i ! ] I T ] ol
133Hs vin e f & & & o5 & B 0B & 2 o5 & 4 g £, & &
ok 28 or ¥ o 28 g =T mw 26 a3 &2 &2 i gk BE w_w
Y0¥ 9 Nvid | 1 | | | 1 bl | | T { i 1 |
NOLLOMYISNODIY 153M1S 31VIS § INld
UL ot " o040 i3 Rid N b Ll
¥B96Y "I *ALID 3SHBAVAL - : ] 7 T
SAY NYAQuvod ooy [
INSNLIYEED ONRIFINIOND
ALDISUIAVHLIO AL | N
— N T :
Trow T
- cous arseo
W o w~wwmy
{amaw
— Ry
& 3 CRE R H
WIVOS JMHavED .
. , ovess ts'ean
3 - . - .
UuTCO I O ==
oroon " . ong
CEE
.
e sy s e SIS : oo

gﬁﬁkzga.udig.ésgﬁxm

N ONOT'ANAL MILYA
L~ - - -

Sy :
mwugx%v?%%% % SN

sonancnss |
priciterd
S3LHG G ¥od VAIERVIS

HIVWAYMIAMG G2svhILes

iy HERTE RS YOV IOt
Y L 5t

: : . . e ,.
1] R Y A .
—r—tmT . . POLE F30Ee EX5 o . = SR o /..%%/\%./%J}/ﬁmwv s m._.nx.k!//..,i X /«,yixﬁm.vqﬁ R T AN SN TR
_ _ . S , R %gﬁ%%%m\%%&k%%?

o {fﬁ%%ﬂhﬂﬁ&m : ix.m..unwwzhl o A,
(#} /:J. .

L1 O TG M EY
v3 Bl ONOY
i DIETNOHE 3IAHAE WALy,

v
ORI
g S AT :

: ES—

4 TR 00O O AN O

»’ T QN3OITHOIVH



£ ¥ g
VIYY ID3LOUd A D

QUIHE 40 , X063000¢ 0w wor
L GIAGHY |

VT HANG
S8 GINGIETA
e

et ENINGINGR

J33HS N e

) FNIOUd 7 Nv1d
zoEb:EwZOQmmhmwmhwmhﬁ.wdsz

ST pMMveg

Y8860 "IN "ALIO SHAAVYL

“SAY NYNQMYOs

ANIALAYCERQ ONRIEENIONT
ALIO SSHIAVYL 40 ALD

oy

ENTHED - NOUINSE0 NOIGASY | N

ERTE R

WAURGAE 7O ]

- " I

4TVOS OlHdVED

i

1

- 990pwAT13
A% NGITIGRV 1T LV 50
- HODMEO0TH QAN

I3

TR

g “Wiowamotmaver
SIS A TR M GNP T YY E0MI0 IRty T ST TRt
MO 150G o4 35 30 TV MYV HOUGILING S

ey

RS R -
==

P e W
[T ———

VY TOUYUOLEBHMON ML 03100

ONSSITHOLVH |

LT /31

o7

NaT

i

3
oL,

7
sl

Foag T2 <30 Ve |

U #REC] 1 VrOT

FO 8 INGURON AV ONGS | -

ORI BTINIMNGN A YNODAT A SNGD

W TEINGANON THEAYS RIEHINGS

HH
e f5 ]

HEwTr ONDS nvaraais

!

i
A
8

#5175 NG WILIAD Oirv Gns
YONTT 0V 3 IVOUNGOY.
WYY RIALVA GNILEDC) DL 15 TRNOD

D LS04 N8 2810 NIV FRLYAS

SISs S,

901G ONG BOINIIT MLV,

“IEN7GY %00 SIVD.
il

GG 8y SN IOHTS MO,

S

(T [ iy

G ONZ UGN 0

ROIINIGE2d Woit

ARG B TUITIINYED GuLvmirs

ANV MR IO CRYNOLYTIVIEN]  * © +  uy peeieear R v

92,0 AL0% =) MBS

958

I
&
3

1865

X Jﬂ 23

| sa
L1

|11g6s |
v

| 60°96¢
L5

R
2
1

oot 00t

oo " _ Q

oo -

- _
N I

BN E:.E_T.J_

]

[N

ldkn W‘ \ L 1L 1
{ T
I

i

[orcos

_
zwslrw glﬁ?ﬂﬂle
|
ﬁ
!

- 1S o e A

(44.9) erbes G 2 e o

{438 21 YR w AN AN _h.u:czna Nt
. AN T D348 a0

VG 004 W U ol

U0 ML

3071 3L4VEL NV LITANOD ININIOV NI W3 oA
T4 NHAS TR DIVSL IIVNICUOGD

HRLYN S1ovI L
¥0ERGAUVDH
Noeunvs

= YT
00k YIS TaY

G..h::x.ii,
o 13y S g
seimem

A eowtoon v+
oz

~{ o

ANWAAOD N

{2 B wvas e pn

mmatrgy F

TGS 0 VD .
(10 3808 WIS HE “doudd

24



S
= Ere oy

<asnown - (8

L,mu%,g 54
%ﬁ?#mg xﬁwjéiw W swm
LSl iasid

“Lg3

!

)

AR

N

1

.

<

3
J

™ onsoua’
NVIMISRA3d!

it

13TH1S F1VLS ANV 3NId
NVid TVNLdIONOD SdvOSiaTuLS

;ﬁa@a& w~vipbs./ﬁu JCL.E )
\?)ﬁfﬁ? \v%jh .wﬁ\@.\ﬁ/?bwlﬂ.v c w

25



cl02/61/9

)

AN AL 2l W
Tf/aow\u M MY

syybiapn 09)3 9bpug ueuisepsd

.J...RrﬂJuw ﬂu%ﬁ—dunm

(14 /#) V1Ol

L0°€050-¢1

FAVdS 0 TH ® L€ TTH - LINANOD MX .9

8L1L0 b 8L1°0 3814 d3H0ONWYY LND 22

162°0 b 1620 3414 487101 - LONAYINNI WP/ L
G020 b G0c¢0 Xv0O §¢9°0

16270 2 L62°0 XVOO ALVD - LONAYHANNI LY/ L
9€C’0 T4 8L1°0 3814 d340NHY LNO 22

Gico b S0 3914 ALV - LONAYANNI WL
08e’C b 08€¢ SNOILVOINNWIWOD - LINANOD MX P

AdVANODIS - LINANOD MX .€

LETH - LINANOD MX .9

005°¢ b 00g'e 0€TH - LINANOD MX .9
66570} € €ea’e 378vD "3AMOd ‘ND ‘AAGL ‘NOM0SL . .
00s¢ b 005°c ¢ZH - LINANOD MX .9

8%,

v.9°) b v.9°1 TVELNAN ‘MHY 'A009 NDM00S

6650l € £EGE 378vD ¥3AMOd ‘NO ‘AJSL ‘NDM0SL .

00s€ L 00s’¢ 0¢H - LINANOD MX .9 L
(L4/#) IVLOL] ALILNYNO |L4/LHOIAM T4 W3 NOILdI¥OS3Aa LINANOD # LINANOD

1HOIIM ¥OLIONANOD ANV LINANOD IDAI¥E NVIFLSIA3d HIAIN NVINaNvOog
ANNOYUOHIAANN 133¥1S F1VIS ANV INId
AIMOd B LHOIT ALID FSUIAVHL

©
AN



GRP

Engineering, Inc. Project Memorandum

To: Mr. Glen Dine Client: Traverse City Light & Power
Firm: TCL&P Project Name: Pine and State Street Underground
From: Davin H. Peterson Project No: 12-0503.01

Issue Date: June 14, 2012

Subject: Easement Location Descriptions

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed a review of required easement locations for the Pine and State Street
Underground Project. Potential locations were field reviewed on June 4, 2012. The easement areas are
required to provide adequate space for padmount electrical equipment and workspace access. The areas
that are to be considered for obtaining an easement are reviewed in this memorandum.

Easement Locations

Easement Area #1 - Located along the river's edge and at the northeast corner of the property owned by
Federated Properties. A 15 foot wide easement is needed for conduit which is to be located near the river’s
edge, which may have to be revised based on a survey of the sanitary location. An equipment area of 15’ X
15’ will be needed on the property starting at a useable distance from the river's edge on the east edge of
the property. (Refer to Figure 1)

Easement Area #2 - Located in the southeast corner of the City Parking Lot on the west side of Pine Street.
The easement starts even with the south edge of the parking lot and even with the sidewalk. The equipment
will be placed in the existing parking lot. The area for the easement is a 20’ X 35’ to provide room for a four
foot by four foot handhole, two sets of padmount switchgear, and a sectionalizing cabinet. The 20’ width is
to accommodate the width of a handhole, space between to run the conduits from the handhole to the
switchgear, as well as the switchgear. The 35’ in length is to place the equipment off of the street. The area
is also to provide room for the future placement of a transformer to be used for the streetscape lighting. The
equipment area will also provide a tap point to serve any future transformer that would be needed for future
development. The south property line for this area needs to be verified as it appears incorrect on the
basemap. (Refer to Figure 2)

Easement Area #3 - The third easement location is located on the southeast corner of 150 Pine Street. The
area currently has a bus stop location placed on it and has a large landscaped berm. There are two options
for this equipment area. The first and proposed option is to flatten the berm and utilize it as an equipment
area. In doing so, the area will be newly landscaped and re-curbed as part of the construction. The area for
construction is a 25’ X 30’ section, or the current green area and bus stop. This option includes removal of
the trees temporary removal of the bus stop, flattening of the berm, and an easement area of 15’ X 25’. The
15’ width is to accommodate the switchgear equipment and working area. The 25’ in length is to provide
space behind the bus stop for switchgear and a sectionalizing cabinet. The existing foliage would be
replaced with new after the equipment is placed and bus stop reinstalled

660 Cascade West Pkwy SE Suite 65 325 East Lake Street Suite 26
Grand Rapids M|l 49546 Petoskey Ml 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683
F: 616.285.6448 F: 231.439.9698

21



The second option for the easement is to locate the equipment area to the parking spaces behind (west) of
the berm with conduits being trenched through the center of the berm. This option requires an easement
area that is 25" X 45’ which would allow the conduits to run through the center of the berm and would allow
the foliage and bus stop to remain in place. Installing conduit through the berm requires a large trench to be
made. Excavating a large trench so close to the trees and landscaping may have adverse effects on the
plants health. This option requires the largest easement area since it salvages the large maple tree within
the landscaped area.

The first option is recommended which includes flattening the berm and installing the equipment closer to
the street curb, allowing for a smaller easement area. (Refer to Figure 3)

Easement Area #4 - The fifth easement is located on the northeast corner of the Traverse City parking lot
located on State Street next to the U.S. Post Office. The 15’ X 20’ area will have a pair of sectionalizing
cabinets and a switchgear. This equipment area will be utilized for future service requirements. (Refer to
Figure 4)

¢¢¢¢¢¢¢

\

Figlire 4: Easement

e

Area #4

Figure 3: Easemeﬁt Area #3

660 Cascade West Pkwy SE Suite 65 325 East Lake Street Suite 26
Grand Rapids Ml 49546 Petoskey MI 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683
F: 616.285.6448 F: 231.439.9698

28



e’

SRS S

°

[ Sty SeemAsks SO

fe

f

SV

Haue S’?‘”& 5
Su

S
o/

RAVERSE CI1Y

~ 1inch = 163 feet




30

WORK LIMITS

. REPLACE PMH—
60 = SnneHwaT\
L
SEE DETAL " (s ThR

IGRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY

GARFIELD TOWNSHIP
SECTION 03
27N R1

DiiG #5 LR =
REPLACE PHMH- —/\
SWITCHGEAR

39 SECTIONALIZING ~+
CABINET 4 (2004)

! " 1-6
Pl v
!

HL30

2-6"
HL31
ﬁ

e -
=38 SECTONAUZING

< Vi
WA
/\\L\f PMHE SWTCHGEAR

/e \ HL30
— 15.0' }=—
1150 — SEE DETAL

i CABINET # (2008)
LEC = DYG #6
ey
sl NS Ly s
7 ) : - SEE DETAL
: Al | DG £6
/T = 7
g S| K
# Ao ;o L
;ilé" ) o / 3 .i 2(%7/ 7SEE |oETaL Sk
i I i —y ] . I r -
s~ Ptz
£ s\ :
) Sl . -
R i :
3] L - -
1k} BN B
z /—7 6-6
i1 Vehil
PRELIMINARY DRAWING
PIHI=11 SHIGHGEAR ' ‘
REFER TO SHEET #4
- e PROJECT DRAWING
(4} SR GRP TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER NUMBER | NUMBER
YIRIACVI:_IR_IE [Q: iDTCY)WER cK MPM Engineering, Inc. PINE STREET & STATE STREET UNDERGROUND TRAVERSE CITY, MICHIGAN 0050301 3
A . ARF il G | e ST PETOSKEY, WICHIGAN, 231-439-0683 RIVER CROSSING & PINE STREET LAYOUT e
Fieutti O Emegy b Vi DATE ISSUED FOR GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN, 616-942—7185

30



EG-S ey el AM,

24 2,

PVH-11 SWITCHGEAR

HL20
SEE DETAIL .
B - bic #5 Y\
Y

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 7 Y1

REFER TO SHEET #3

I,

il ‘i e — T T
) \sma.w&

} 20.0'
38 SECTIONALIZING —

1-4 CABINET # (200A)
STUB 40 &

IITNESS M=3" /(
PHH 9 S\vITCI-CEAR

PINE ST.

FLEC WITNESS 2-6"

SRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
GARFIELD TOWNSHIP
SECTION 03

T2TN PR1I W

ey SOUTH ALLEY/WEST FRONT STREET

STUB, CAP &
/ WITNESS 2-6"

SEE DED;\L e
DWG #5
Easewmont As 1 _— R
B! / I [T T o ‘ ]
0 = H %
3 sccnonuznG — L . NG ) i v
CABNET # (2004) STATE ST 2-6 I 94 2-6" 3 | i
FMH-11 SHITCHﬁSE R — 777777777777;?“? ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ I il z g
\ 5&90523? ﬂ,,\; = : L ————ary \
- — 14 7 :’Av o - L
i / ( \ . z EE
ca 2 2
6\"—""" e J“ i 9‘07 STUB, (;APJ& cmr ) /
Fﬂ-ci '\“d | i WITNESS 1-47 EED?EEU,;_L) —“’ 2
s R e R
SCTIONALIZIN STUB, CA° &
RQ_ 1 :’\- J)cjtxas‘igo#lx(zéor/«c) Ea!e‘m“f A" P | | WITNESS z-s
} 4L
l PRELIMINARY DRAWINGI
d ENG MR PROJECT DRAWING
e i GRP TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER NUMBER | NUMBER
I[R]%},,}E-]R]E l&c }'3’(3 S K o Engineering’ Inc. PINE STREET & STATE STREET UNDERGROUND TRAVERSE CITY, MICHIGAN B 4
i e PINE STREET & STATE STREET UNDERGROUND LAYOUT 0903
8 - v DATE ISSUED FOR GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN, 616-942-7183

31



-0

X ; 43
7 — PIH- SWITCKGEAR
5 o /o L 30

36 SECTIONALIZING
CAEINET # (2004)

25-7"

‘ 15'-0"
[

#1 EQUIPMENT AREA

PNH-11 SHITCHGEAR
HL20

4 STUB, CAP &

N WITHESS 1-4" \
Sy -
10" |

|

|

|

=t

&l

.

I

S

g

&l

g

—— . «.._41

w

e

2

A

1

-4 19 79K (MR |
20'-0"

CABINET £ (2008)

3¢ SEcTiefaLzing —!

— \- 357UB; CAP-&

A
o
- ’i F A F 5 S o ot £
I3 4 4’0/50/ 7 éG o
| ]
Q Q/ 9 " Qi L e A '
K 7 g
St
$ ELEC /
"

VIITNESS 1-3"

350"

#2 EQUIPMENT AREA

PRELIMINARY DRAWING

PMH-11 SHITCHGEAR
—— H22 )
/ /
) sl /
pd A 5
o ) 16" 38 13 (oL &)
7 i

| 25'-0" ™

" 3p 138K (HI20 £ )

6
-6" 29 13BW (MANHOLE HL20/22 )

£ -
6

739 138K (HL20 £ )

38 SECTIONALIZING £
CASINET # (2008)

EX ¢ f

#3 EQUIPMENT AREA

1-6" 39 138 (F___) 319 g 1-6 39 138KV (F__)
1-6" 39 138 (# ) | 1-6" 39 13.8kV (§___ )
e e e D TBTOTN(E )., H’
\\ 1!
) gigl
| 515
| 5’13’4
! i
B - ==
| |
R = = Tl _—
| |l
| |l
i '
| ! : —3"_19 120/210V_(FANDHOLE)
| bile 4 SPRE)
| | E
: R,
- g _
| |l 3 |
e} A
HF 7S L
' i iy
| # LA
| FQ S ] | i :
B I
TR Y 1o
4] /o .
PMH-9 SWITCHGEAR — b . / 74 20'-0'
3 SECTIONALIZING I~ s '/3
CEBINET # (2004) \ i
!
- |
3¢ SECTIONALIZING / f
CABINET # (2004) STUB, CAP &
g WITNESS 1-3"
} 15'-0" |

|
|
|
|
|

#4 EQUIPMENT AREA

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

Investing Our Energy In You

ENG MPM
DR KM
oK MPM
APP MPM

(5-02-2012

EASEVENT ACOUSTIN

DATE

ISSUED FOR

GRP

Engineering, Inc.

PETOSKEY, MICHIGAN, 231-439-9683

GRAND RAPIDS,

PINE STREET & STATE STREET UNDERGROUND

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

TRAVERSE CITY, MICHIGAN

PROJECT
NUMBER

PROPOSED EASEMENTS

MICHIGAN, 616-942-7183

10-0503.01

DRAWING

NUMBER

ok




GOVERNMENTAL CENTER

i it 400 Boardman Avenue Ovo

The City of Traverse City Traverse City, M1 45654 gy
. . (231) 922-4440 ———
Office of the City Manager (231) 922-4476 Fax P~

tcmanage@traversecitymi.gov

TO: TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER BOARD

DATE: JUNE 22, 2012

FROM: R. BEN BIFOSS, CITY MANAGER

SUBJECT: STATE AND PINE

For many years the City has considered Pine and State Streets, from Front to
Union, a high priority for reconstruction. This is a primary entrance to our
downtown. Our hope has been that this reconstruction project could coincide with
private redevelopment around the intersection of Pine and Front, but we cannot
continue to wait on this hope. The City has received a $375,000 grant from
MDOT for this project and we are contracted to proceed immediately after Labor
Day this year.

This project includes significant underground work on the water, sewer and storm
sewer systems. We have planned on coordinating the underground work with
Light and Power to underground the electrical system in this area as well. The
coordination of this work is consistent with City policies and is cost effective as
the cost of all of the street work is only undertaken one time rather than having to
be redone if L&P were to underground the electric system at a later date. In this
project, the entire street reconstruction cost is borne by the City.

As you know, undergrounding the electric on State and Pine is part of a larger
project. The DDA Executive Director has earlier advised you that the pedestrian
bridge over the Boardman River to the Garland Street area and eventually the
Bayfront is included in the DDA budget and CIP for the 2012/13 Fiscal Year. The
plan and expectation is that L&P can use the pedestrian bridge to further enhance
the aesthetics of what we believe will become a primary link between Front Street
and the Bayfront.

Because we are using MDOT funds, we must follow MDOT bidding and
contracting requirements. Under those rules, the actual construction contract will
be held by MDOT. Through a competitive bidding process, MDOT has contracted
with Elmers for our utility, street and sidewalk work. We respectfully request that
L&P approve a change order to this contract that would allow the necessary

33



electrical conduit to be installed by Elmers in conjunction with the MDOT
contract. There are two primary reasons for this request.

First, having two different underground contractors working on the same site
creates significant room for conflict. Each contractor has the opportunity to blame
the other for construction conflicts and delays. The work would not proceed in a
linear fashion; one contractor may proceed from Front to State and then wait will
the other contractor comes back to repeat the sequence. Delays are inevitable.

Second, L&P has recently bid significant underground work on Bay Street. We
believe it possible to ensure reasonable pricing by using those bids to establish
price points for this project.

Street work is under seasonable time constraints. This project must be completed
by November | to meet those constraints. In order to ensure a reasonable
construction schedule and avoid construction delays due to contractor conflicts, we
request that you authorized a change order to the current Elmers contract to include
the installation of electrical conduit on State and Pine. The actual work of
undergrounding the electrical utility can be bid and contracted at a later time.
Thank you for your consideration.

34




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 26, 2012

¢St 1972
TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board : EQ
From: Ed Rice, Executive Director
Date: June 21, 2012
Subject: Interconnection Facilities Agreement Between Michigan Electric

Transmission Company, LLC and Traverse City Light and Power Department

Staff and counsel have been in discussion and negotiations with the Michigan Electric
Transmission Company, LLC to establish a new 138kV interconnection on property
purchased by Traverse City Light and Power, located in East Bay Township, Grand
Traverse County.

An Interconnection Facilities Agreement has been developed between the two parties that
describes the general ownership and description of facilities, obligations and rights of each,
and other general procedures necessary to maintain safety, reliability and integrity of the
transmission system as a result of the new interconnection facilities to be constructed.

Staff recommends L&P Board approval of the Interconnection Facilities Agreement
Between Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LLC and Traverse City Light and
Power Department. If the Board concurs, the following motion is appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,
THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN AND
SECRETARY TO ENTER INTO AN INTERCONNECTION FACILITIES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE MICHIGAN ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION COMPANY, LLC AND
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER DEPARTMENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF
ESTABLISHING A NEW 138KV TRANSMISSION INTERCONNECTION AT AN
INTERCONNECTION SITE LOCATED IN THE TOWNSHIP OF EAST BAY, GRAND
TRAVERSE COUNTY FOR THE EAST HAMMOND SUBSTATION PROJECT;
SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
AND APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY COUNSEL.

35




INTERCONNECTION FACILITIES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
MICHIGAN ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION COMPANY, LLC
AND
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER DEPARTMENT

This INTERCONNECTION FACILITIES AGREEMENT, herein termed
“Agreement”, is made and entered into as of the  day of 2012, between
MICHIGAN ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION COMPANY, LLC, a Michigan Limited Liability
Company, 27175 Energy Way, Novi, Michigan, herein termed “Transmission Owner”, and
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER DEPARTMENT, a Michigan municipal electric utility,
1131 Hastings Street, Traverse City, Michigan 49686, herein termed “Interconnection
Customer”. Transmission Owner and Interconnection Customer are sometimes referred to
individually as “Party” and collectively as “Parties” where appropriate.

WHEREAS, Transmission Owner and Interconnection Customer desire to enter into this
Interconnection Facilities Agreement for the purposes, among others, of (a) describing the
general facilities, and the ownership thereof, that shall be used at the interconnection site and
establishing the respective ownership of facilities, obligations and rights of each of the Parties
with respect to procurement, installation, operation and maintenance of such facilities, and (b)
describing other procedures that are necessary to maintain safety, reliability and integrity on
Transmission Owner’s system and Interconnection Customer’s system as a result of installing the
facilities at the interconnection site.

NOW, THEREFORE, In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements below,

the Parties agree as follows:

SECTION 1. CONNECTION FACILITIES

1.1 General. The Parties will provide, as specified in this Section 1, certain 138 kV electric

facilities and associated appurtenances which will be used in the connection of the new
Interconnection Customer substation.

1.1.1 The facilities comprising the interconnection are all located in the Township of
East Bay, Grand Traverse County, Michigan and shown as Parcel “A”, in Exhibit A, the attached
survey recorded at 2011S-00036 Grand Traverse County Register of Deeds.

36




1.1.2 The facilities and associated appurtenances include connection, switching,
control, and protective relaying equipment required as a result of installing facilities for the
Traverse City Light & Power Department.

1.1.3 The Transmission Owner’s 138 kV transmission connection facilities, the
Interconnection Customer’s connection facilities and their associated appurtenances, as described
in Subsections 1.2 and 1.3 are sometimes referred to as the “Connection Facilities”, as generally
shown in Exhibit B.

1.1.4 Each Party shall bear the cost of its Connection Facilities unless otherwise
specified in this Agreement. Interconnection Customer shall solely assume the risk that
Transmission Owner may be unable to complete its Connection Facilities due to factors beyond
Transmission Owner’s reasonable control. Transmission Owner shall solely assume the risk that
that Interconnection Customer may be unable to complete its Connection Facilities due to factors
beyond Interconnection Customer’s reasonable control.

1.1.5 In the event future changes in either (i) design or operation of Interconnection
Customer’s system, (ii) Federal, state or local laws, regulations or codes, or (iii) design or
operation of Transmission Owner’s system, later necessitate additional facilities or modifications
to the then existing Connection Facilities herein, the Parties shall undertake such additions or
modifications as may be necessary.

1.1.5.1 Before undertaking such future additions or modifications, the Parties
shall consult with each other, develop plans and coordinate schedules of activities.

1.1.5.2 The cost of such future additions or modifications to the Connection
Facilities shall be borne by the Party requiring the additions or modifications, unless agreed
otherwise at the time.

1.1.5.3 The ownership, operation and maintenance responsibilities for any such
future additions or modifications shall be made consistent with the responsibilities allocated in
this Agreement.

1.1.6 If an attachment, exhibit, notice or other document related to this Agreement
references ITC or ITC Holdings Corp., that reference shall mean Michigan Electric Transmission

Company, LLC.

37




1.2 Interconnection Customer’s Connection Facilities

Interconnection Customer shall continue to own (except for those Transmission Owner’s
Connection Facilities stated in Subsection 1.3) facilities at the interconnection, including but not
limited to the following:

1.2.1  One (1) 138/69 kV, 90/120/150 MVA transformer, some length of 138 kV
conductor, one (1) 138 kV manual-operated disconnect switch including support structures and
one (1) 138kV circuit switcher;

1.2.2 Three (3) combination 138 kV VT/CT metering units, one in each phase;

1.2.3 Protective relaying and other protective equipment acceptable to both parties;

1.2.4 A substation control house or switchgear with space inside that is suitable for the
location and protection of the billing metering equipment and any associated Remote
Transmitting Unit (“RTU”). The Interconnection Customer shall provide to the applicable Meter
Data Management Agent (the “MDMA”) and Transmission Owner, if necessary, and to those
third parties that require such data to calculate network load (i.e., presently Consumers Energy)
direct dial-in access to the billing metering data. Such access shall be at the sole expense of the
requesting third party. Third parties shall be bound by any applicable Code-of-Conduct rules.
The MDMA shall be responsible for reporting such data to the Midwest Independent
Transmission System Operator, Inc. (“MISO”).

1.3 Transmission Owner’s Connection Facilities

1.3.1 Transmission Owner shall provide, install, own, operate and maintain adjacent to
Interconnection Customer’s Connection Facilities on the site a new 3-breaker 138 kV switching
station looped into and directly adjacent to the existing Keystone-Acme-Plum 138 kV line to
feed the Interconnection Customer’s new 138/69 kV substation.

1.3.2 The Transmission Owner will comply with all applicable local laws, regulations
and ordinances and with the following subsections of Section 4 Decisions and Conditions of
Approval of SLU6-11 and SPR7-11 as shown in Exhibit C: Subsections (a), (b), (d), and (e).

1.4 Transmission Owner Equipment Relocation Requested by Interconnection

Customer

If at any time Interconnection Customer requires those facilities located on its premises,
but provided and owned by Transmission Owner, to be relocated on such premises, Transmission

Owner shall at Interconnection Customer’s expense and upon Interconnection Customer’s

38




request relocate the same or give permission for Interconnection Customer to relocate the same.

1.5 Facilities Added in the Future

If and when additional facilities are added at the interconnection site, Parcel “A”, by

Interconnection Customer or by Transmission Owner, each Party requiring new facilities shall, at
no cost to the other Party, install (or cause to be installed) facilities and/or protective relay
systems that shall provide for the isolation of any electrical faults that occur on the
interconnected systems of either the Interconnection Customer or Transmission Owner from
having an effect on the other’s interconnected system.

1.5.1 The facilities and/or protective relay systems shall be designed to fit into the
electrical system configuration and shall be acceptable to the Parties.

1.5.2 Transmission Owner and Interconnection Customer shall give advance notice to
the other Party of any such additions which it may contemplate making so as to attain the best

practicable coordination of future system plans and the design of any necessary facilities.

SECTION 2. DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE CONNECTION FACILITIES

2.1 Authority for Performance

Except as provided in Subsection 2.1.1, Interconnection Customer shall have sole
authority to manage, design, supervise, construct, procure materials for, and control, and shall
take all steps which it deems necessary or appropriate for the installation of, its Connection
Facilities required pursuant to Subsection 1.2, the “Interconnection Customer’s Connection
Facilities.”

2.1.1 The design, specifications, installation and construction of the Interconnection
Customer’s 138 kV Connection Facilities required pursuant to Subsection 1.2 shall be in
accordance with standards no less stringent than those now used by Transmission Owner for its
own 138 kV installations.

2.1.2 The design and specifications of the Connection Facilities required pursuant to
Subsection 1.2 shall be subject to the inspection of and comment by Transmission Owner prior to
being placed into initial operation; provided, that Transmission Owner shall have no obligation
or responsibility with respect to such design, plans, specifications, installation or construction

because of its inspection and comment thereon.

39




2.1.3 Transmission Owner shall connect to Interconnection Customer’s Connection
Facilities if, and only if, the specifications, design, installation and construction of
Interconnection Customer’s Connection Facilities are in accordance with standards no less
stringent than those now used by Transmission Owner for its own 138 kV installations.

2.1.4 Transmission Owner shall have sole authority to manage, design, supervise,
construct, procure materials for, and control, and shall take all steps which it deems necessary or
appropriate for the installation and connection of, its Connection Facilities required pursuant to
Subsection 1.3, the “Transmission Owner’s Connection Facilities.”

2.2 Coordination of Construction Program

The Parties (a) shall utilize their best efforts to ensure that the installation of the
Connection Facilities and all construction activities to be provided by both Interconnection
Customer and Transmission Owner, as herein described, will be completed and ready to connect
Interconnection Customer’s interconnection to Transmission Owner’s system by December 31,
2012, or by such other date as mutually agreed, (b) shall coordinate their respective construction
programs essential to carrying out the installation by Interconnection Customer of its Connection
Facilities required pursuant to Subsection 1.2 and the installation by Transmission Owner of its
Connection Facilities required pursuant to Subsection 1.3 and shall cooperate to ensure, as
closely as practicable, the simultanecous completion of the installation of the Connection
Facilities to be installed by Interconnection Customer and Transmission Owner, respectively,
and (c¢) shall require all contractors and suppliers who are working at the interconnection site to
coordinate their activities.

2.3 Connection of Interconnection Customer’s Interconnection

Connection of the interconnection to Transmission Owner’s system shall be made after
the following conditions precedent have been satisfied:

2.3.1 Transmission Owner has declared its Connection Facilities ready for service;

2.3.2 Interconnection Customer  has met  the  design, specifications,
installation, and construction requirements of Subsection 2.1.1; and

2.3.3 Interconnection Customer has provided adequate protective equipment to protect
the equipment and service of Transmission Owner from damage or interruption from electrical

faults occurring on Interconnection Customer’s system.

40




SECTION 3. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE

3.1 Operation and Maintenance by Transmission Owner

3.1.1 Transmission Owner (a) shall have sole authority and responsibility to operate
and maintain Transmission Owner owned Connection Facilities required pursuant to Subsection
1.3 in accordance with the applicable standards of Transmission Owner, and (b) may perform
emergency maintenance, or make system modifications, when necessary, on the Transmission

Owner owned Connection Facilities.

3.2 Operation and Maintenance by Interconnection Customer

Interconnection Customer shall have sole authority and responsibility to operate and
maintain the Interconnection Customer owned Connection Facilities required pursuant to
Subsection 1.2 in accordance with “Good Utility Practice”. Good Ultility Practice means any of
the practices, methods and acts engaged in or approved by a significant portion of the electric
utility industry during the relevant time period, including compliance with FERC-approved
Reliability Standards of the North American Electric Reliability Corporation, or its successor
organization, or any of the practices, methods and acts which, in the exercise of reasonable
judgment in light of the facts known at the time the decision was made, could have been
expected to accomplish the desired result at a reasonable cost consistent with good business
practices, reliability, safety and expedition. Good Ultility Practice is not intended to be limited to
the optimum practice, method, or act to the exclusion of all others, but rather intended to include
acceptable practices, methods, or acts generally accepted in the region, including those practices
required by Federal Power Act Section 215(a)(4). Should the Interconnection Customer fail to
maintain its equipment according to Good Utility Practice, the Transmission Owner shall notify
the Interconnection Customer of such and shall have sole authority to either disconnect the
Interconnection Customer’s facilities until such time the maintenance work is completed or
perform the necessary maintenance work at the Interconnection Customer’s expense. The
Interconnection Customer shall operate and maintain the meter and provide services associated

with the metering, including preventive maintenance services.

33 Insurance

41




Each Party shall acquire and maintain property insurance on its Connection Facilities and
comprehensive general liability insurance as such insurances relate to the Connection Facilities
and to the site upon which the Connection Facilities are to be located. Such insurance policies
shall name the other Party as an additional insured. Upon request of a Party, the other Party shall
deliver a certificate of insurance as it relates to this Agreement.

3.4 Taxes

Any taxes or assessments levied or incurred as a result of a Party’s Connection Facilities
or business activities, shall be the responsibility of that Party. Each Party shall indemnify and
hold harmless the other Party on account of any such taxes and assessments. Taxes include, but
are not limited to, real and personal property taxes.

3.5 Environmental Safety

Each Party agrees to construct, maintain and operate its Connection Facilities so as not to
create or exacerbate any environmental hazard or risk. If a Party creates an environmental
hazard at the site, that Party agrees to promptly and at its sole expense remediate the hazard and

be responsible for all due care activities.

SECTION 4. CONNECTION POINTS

4.1 Connection Point, Point of Change in Facility Ownership and Point of Delivery

The Connection Point and the point of change in facility ownership between the Parties
shall be the point at which the Interconnection Customer’s Connection Facilities connect to the
Transmission Owner‘s bus between 138 kV disconnect switches numbered 6W4 and 6M6. The
point of delivery shall be at the Connection Point. Meter readings are to be adjusted to the point

of delivery, as applicable.

SECTION 5. SERVICE CONDITIONS

5.1 Reactive Control

Control of reactive power will be per Balancing Authority specifications and procedures.

The administration and control of kilovar flow shall be in accordance with “Good Utility
Practice”.

5.2 Continuity of Service

42




Each Party shall exercise reasonable care to maintain continuity of service as provided
under this Agreement.

5.2.1 1If continuity of service becomes interrupted for any reason, the cause of the
interruption shall be removed and normal operating conditions restored as soon as practicable.

5.2.2 Neither Party shall be responsible to the other Party for any damage or loss of
revenue or other liability, damage or expense of any kind whatsoever, caused by or resulting
from or in connection with any interruption.

5.2.3 Settlement of strikes and labor disturbances shall be wholly within the discretion
of the Party having the difficulty.
5.3  Access Rights

Upon reasonable notice, each Party (a) shall furnish at no cost to the other Party any
rights of use, licenses, rights of way and easements with respect to lands owned or controlled by
the furnishing Party that are necessary to enable the other Party to obtain ingress and egress to
construct, operate, maintain, repair, test (or witness testing), inspect, replace or remove facilities
and equipment to: (i) interconnect the Connection Facilities; (ii) operate and maintain the
Party’s Connection Facilities; and (iii) disconnect or remove the other Party’s facilities and
equipment upon termination of this Agreement, and (b) shall grant to the other Party any
easements necessary to establish the interconnection in a form that is acceptable to the other

Party.

SECTION 6. INDEMNITY:; LIMITATION ON LIABILITY; FORCE MAJELJRE
6.1 Indemnity

Each Party shall at all times assume all liability for, and shall indemnify and save the

other Party and its officers, directors, employees, affiliate companies, and agents harmless from,
any and all damages, losses, claims, demands, suits, recoveries, costs, legal fees, and expenses
for injury to or death of any person or persons whomsoever occurring on its own system, or for
any loss, destruction of or damage to any property of third persons, firms, corporations or other
entities occurring on its own system, arising out of or resulting from, either directly or indirectly,
its own facilities, or arising out of or resulting from, either directly or indirectly, any electric
energy furnished to it after such energy has been delivered to it by such other Party, unless
caused by the sole negligence or intentional wrongdoing of the other Party, its officers, directors,

employees, agents, or invitees.

43




6.2  Limitation on Liability

NEITHER PARTY SHALL IN ANY EVENT BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR
ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOST PROFITS, REVENUE OR
GOODWILL, INTEREST, LOSS BY REASON OF SHUTDOWN OR NON-OPERATION
OF EQUIPMENT OR MACHINERY, INCREASED EXPENSE OF OPERATION OF
EQUIPMENT OR MACHINERY, COST OF PURCHASED OR REPLACEMENT
POWER OR SERVICES OR CLAIMS BY CUSTOMERS, WHETHER SUCH LOSS IS
BASED ON CONTRACT, WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR
OTHERWISE, EVEN IF THE PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF SUCH DAMAGES.
6.3  Force Majeure

IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY
FOR ANY ACT, OMISSION OR CIRCUMSTANCE OCCASIONED BY OR IN
CONSEQUENCE OF ANY ACT OF GOD, LABOR DISTURBANCE, ACT OF THE
PUBLIC ENEMY, WAR, INSURRECTION, RIOT, FIRE, STORM OR FLOOD,
EXPLOSION, BREAKAGE OR ACCIDENT TO MACHINERY OR EQUIPMENT,
CURTAILMENT, ORDER, REGULATION OR RESTRICTION IMPOSED BY
GOVERNMENTAL, MILITARY OR LAWFULLY ESTABLISHED CIVILIAN
AUTHORITIES OR BY THE MAKING OF NECESSARY REPAIRS UPON THE
PROPERTY OR EQUIPMENT OF EITHER PARTY, OR BY ANY OTHER CAUSE OR
CAUSES BEYOND EITHER PARTY’S REASONABLE CONTROL. NEITHER PARTY
SHALL BE REQUIRED TO SETTLE ANY STRIKE OR OTHER LABOR PROBLEM IN
A MANNER NOT COMPLETELY SATISFACTORY TO IT.

SECTION 7. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
7.1 Binding Effect

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and

assigns of the respective Parties.

7.2  Assignment
Neither Party shall assign, transfer or otherwise alienate its interest in this Agreement in

whole or in part without the prior written consent of the other Party, which consent shall not be

44




unreasonably withheld. Any attempted assignment without securing the consent of the other

Party shall be null and void, and of no force and effect.

SECTION 8. NOTICE TO PARTIES

Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, any notice, consent or other

communication required to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be mailed
by first class US mail, postage prepaid or delivered to the address set forth below or such other
address as the receiving Party may designate in writing.

8.1  Ifto Transmission Owner:

Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LL.C
General Counsel — Utility Operations

27175 Energy Way

Novi, MI 48377

8.2 If to Interconnection Customer:

Traverse City Light & Power Department
Attn: Executive Director
1131 Hastings Street

Traverse City, MI 49686
° All notices shall be effective when received.
° For questions and concerns of Emergency Operations, contact the Transmission Owner

Operations Control Room (OCR).

° For Interconnection Customer questions concerning maintenance activities, contact the

Transmission Owner’s

. For Transmission Owner’s questions, contact the Interconnection Customer’s control

center.

SECTION 9. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be deemed to be a Michigan contract and shall be construed in
accordance with and governed by the laws of Michigan, exclusive of its conflict of laws

principles.

10

45




SECTION 10. EFFECTIVE DATE. TERM AND TERMINATION

This Agreement shall become effective , 2012, or as otherwise accepted or

ordered by the FERC and shall have an initial term of ten (10) years. This Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect until terminated, which may occur at any time after ten (10) years
by mutual agreement of the Parties or upon not less than 48 months written notice given by

either of the Parties.

SECTION 11. RETIREMENT

At such time as the interconnection is no longer required, then the retirement of the

facilities comprising the interconnection, as described in Subsection 1.2 and Subsection 1.3.1,
shall be the responsibility of the Party owning such facilities. The retirement and removal of
facilities shall be done in a reasonable amount of time unless Transmission Owner is able to
establish that it possesses real estate rights to allow it to remain at the property located in the
Township of East Bay, Grand Traverse County, Michigan and shown as Parcel “A”, in Exhibit A

in which case it will not be required to remove its facilities.

SECTION 12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. THIRD PARTIES AND AMENDMENTS

This Agreement supersedes all previous representations, understandings, negotiations and

agreements either written or oral between the Parties or their representatives and constitutes the
entire agreement of the Parties about the interconnection. This Agreement is intended for the
benefit of the Parties only and does not grant any rights to any third parties unless otherwise
specifically stated. No amendments or changes to this Agreement shall be binding unless made

in writing and duly executed by both Parties.

SECTION 13. NO JOINT VENTURE OR PARTNERSHIP

This Agreement does not and is not intended to create a joint venture or partnership

between the Parties. The rights and obligations of the Parties are entirely contained within this

Agreement.
SECTION 14. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES

This Agreement confers no rights or remedies on any third party, other than to

Consumers Energy under Subsection 1.2.4 so long as it complies with all requirements of

Subsection 1.2.4.

11

46




SECTION 15. NON-DISCRIMINATION

The Parties agree not to discriminate against an employee or applicant for employment

with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or
indirectly related to employment because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height,
weight or marital status. Breach of this covenant may be regarded as a material breach of this
Agreement.

SECTION 16. ELECTRONIC TRANSACTIONS

The Parties agree to conduct this transaction by electronic means. This Agreement may

be executed by providing an electronic signature under the terms of the Uniform Electronic
Transactions Act. This Agreement may not be denied legal effect or admissibility as evidence
solely because it is in electronic form, permits the completion of the business transaction
referenced herein electronically instead of in person, or has been stored electronically. As an
alternative to physical delivery, any document, including any signed document or written notice
may be delivered in electronic form only by the following indicated methods: ~ Facsimile
Email __ Internet  No Electronic Delivery. Documents with original signatures
shall be provided upon request of any Party.
SECTION 17. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

The Parties agree to use the dispute resolution procedures of the MISO Open Access

Transmission, Energy and Operating Reserve Markets Tariff, as they may be amended from time

to time, for all disputes, modified as necessary to be applicable to disputes not involving MISO.

MICHIGAN ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION COMPANY, LLC, a Michigan limited
liability company

By: ITC Holdings Corp., its manager
By:

Name: Gregory loanidis
Title Vice President

12

47




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER DEPARTMENT

By:
Name:
Title: Chairman

By:
Name: Edward E. Rice
Title: Executive Director/Secretary

13

48




_ ( : CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

Patricia C. Groleau
4542 Albert Courtade Road, Traverse City, MI
NORTH 1/2 OF THE NW 1/4, SECTION 28, T27N, R1OW,
EAST BAY TOWNSHIP GRAND TRAVERSE GOUNTY, MICHIGAN

49696

I, the undersigned, being o Professional Surveyor, hereby certify thot | have surveyed ond mapped
the above porcel of lond, that the ratio of closure of the unadjusted field observations is noted,
ond within limits and that | have fully complied with the regulations of Act 132, P.A. 1970 os
amended. The basis for bearings is: Michigan Slate Plone Coordinate System,

(NADB3) (CORSY6), Centrgl Zon
Error of Closure is 1: %
2\

I

Iy

EXHIBIT A

i

Tx:4024331

2011S-00036
STATE OF MICHIGAN
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
RECORDED
10/07/2011 3:38 pMm PAGE 1 OF 2
PEGGY HAINES REGISTER OF DEEDS

—~
David P. Gillette 7 P.S. #41916 )
I | /\NORTH ~ SOUTH 1/4 LINE
ot
- SO11056™W 2665.32 r
! 1332.66' T -7 // h
North 1/4 Corner q§~" J
Section 28, T27N, R1OW
G.1. Co. Remon (L003, P435) C%TDERACP C%SPTT FOUND
N4OW 18.17' Found Spike in 5" Ash Yot ED IS,
I / I N75E 1098’ Found Spike in 6" Twin Maple S84°03'21"W 11.99
O / S20°% 20.05" Found Spike In 16" Ash ] FROM INTERSECTION OF
| g / S41% 30.69° Found Spike in 14 Ash |
! | EAST LNE OF THE WEST 1/2 Monument Found l
/ OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF N67°43'52"E 6.04’
/ THE NORTHWEST 1,4 From 1/16 Corner
L S01°05'03"w 1333.30’
ot -
R 519.41 :
o 813.89
o / z ]
S TOWER |
£ D Y o, .
g N / / / T %%o/( & PARCEL "A
= ERI
= ] S 2 6.59 ACRES
= o ES “ly%
2 g/ 5 4%
% & %% o
g T 5 Q,o N
£
M / N S "76(‘<\ N P,
3 oS %, R
K ! CZ
| T -
s | %, \ NOO%59'11"E 2667.66
= 0
2 e WEST 1/8 LINE %Q\POW OF
B | % / A ZD@/J BEGINNING N
s PROPOSED 66-FOOT EASEMENT 5.
gow FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS AND I |
g3 o NORTH FOR THE INSTALLATION AND
3 S MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC UTILIIES L AN
3 ~ %
- & | S TOWER
E 175} REMAINDER PARCEL é; W
5 50.85 ACRES A S 5
2 R Q '
;% R’ Northwest Corner - !
g l 3 Section 28, T27N, R1OW E
e < G.T. Co. Remon (L003, P439) S )
e || NES¥ 63.46' Found Nil in N foce f 18" Bosswood F et 14 Corner
4 S22 68.32' Found Spike in W face of Power Pole 103.80° GT. Co. Remon (|_063 P859)
3 f J S43% 115.70° Found Spike in SE face of Power Pofe NT8NI 74.12° Po;t
= S57W 60.39" Found Spike in S face of Light Pole NISE 17410 Power Pole |
% ! S00°47°29” W SB3E 32.91" Found Iron & Cap #13030
g ' _Lu 325‘00' = S45% 101.10° Poyer Pole I
& I ! @ = 3 © 1/8 CORNER
3 o ] POINT OF
2 l E‘:; S Sl& BEGINNING
£ , Q 66' T
2 g T T 81643 — L8 sy = A
s — 139508 — T Sy
§ [‘ S00°47°29"w i 2670.46°
s C/L Four Mile Road (667)
=) LEGEND gUtT: 1/\13/ 1;}0/1-25%10 Engineers
MONUMENT FOUND R)  RECORDED cale: i . o
© IRON FOUND G Fover Drayn: WMA. Euiil},ﬁ Ezuh ?E{  Surveyors
A NAIL FOUND A NAL SEF Chk'd:: JAd. 720 cusness P oo gﬁ:ﬁﬂ'gmw
WOOD STAKE FOUND & WO0D STAKE SET Rev.: Traverse Clty, NI 49686-8607 .
2}\-946—52’1 800-968-1062 Landscape
(_Job Mo 201072002 Sheet: 1 of 2 Fox 251-341~4603 Architecture )

49



CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

Patricia C. Groleau
4542 Albert Courtade Road, Traverse City, Ml 49696
NORTH 1/2 OF THE NW 1/4, SECTION 28, T27N, R10W,
EAST BAY TOWNSHIP GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

DESCRIPTION — PARCEL "A” ~

Part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Township 27 Norlh, Rangs 10 Wesl, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse
County, Michigan, more fully described as follows:

Commencing al the Northwest Corner of sald Section 28; thence clong the West line of seid ssction SOQP47°29"W 1335.23 feet fo
the North 1/8 line of said section; thence clong said 1/8 line S88°24'26"E 1238.30 feet fo the Poini of Beginning; thence parallel
with and 50.00 fee! fo the Southeast of the centerline of an existing overhead electric transmission line right-of—way (recorded in
Liber 200, Page 499) N42°21°26"E 490.70 feet; and N4Z12'09"E 582.48 feet fo fhe East line of the West 1/2 of the Northeast 1/4
of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 28; thence along said East line SO1°05°03°W 813.89 fest fo said Norih 1/8 line; thence clong
said 1/8 line NBB™24'26"W 706.76 feet fo the Point of Beginning, containing 6.59 acres of land, more or less.

Together with o proposed easement, 66.00 feet in width, for ingress and agress and for the installation and maintenance of public
utilities described os follows:

Part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Saciion 28, Townshlp 27 Norlh, Range 10 West, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse
County, Michigan, more fully describad as follows:

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of sald Section 28; thence along the West line of said section S00°47'29"W 1335.23 feef fo
the North 1/8 line of sald section ond the Point of Beginning; thence 66.00 fest North of and conliguous with the following
dascribed line: olang the Norih 1/8 Hine of said section S88°24'26"F 1238.30 feet fo the Point of Ending, the sidelines of the
above easement shorten or lengthen fo originate at the West line of sald Section 28 and to terminate ot a line bsaring N42°21°25"F
from the Point of Ending.

PARENT PARCEL DESCRIPTION

From First American Tille Insurance Company Commiiment No. TC-09-3088
The North one-half of the Northwest one—quarter of Section 28, Town 27 North, Range 10 West

EXCEPT, that part of the North one—half of the Northwest one-quarier lying with in the following parcel described as lying Southerly
of a County Road, more fully described as: Commencing af the North quarter corner of sald Seclion 28; thence North 89°14* West,
442.00 feet along the North fine of said Saclion 28 to the cenier line of counfy road ond the Point of Beginning; thence
Southeasterly, 215,79 feet along said center line and the arc of o 451.52 foot radius curve fo the right, the chord of which bears
South 75°32'30" Easi, 213.75 feel; thence South 6151 East, 217.01 feet, along the center line; thence Southeasterly, 217.06 feet
along said center line ond the arc of a 544.86 foot radius curve to the left, the chord of which bears South 73%15'50" Eqst,
215.65 feel; thence South 84°40°40" East, 916.12 feet along the said cenlerline; ihence South 84°34'55” East, 211.87 fest dlong said
center line fo the East one-eighth line of said sectlon ; thence South (°25' East, 1032.67 feel along sald East one—eighth fins o
the North one-sighth line of sald Saction 28; thence North 89°14'25" West, 1288.10 feet along said North one-eighth line to the
North and South quarier line of sald Section 28; thence North 89°17'50" Wesi, 650.94 feet along said North one-sighth line to the
west line of sald Eost half of the Northwest quarler of the Norihwest quarter; thence north 0°00°25" Wasl, 1333.23 fee! along seid
Wost line fo sald North Section line and center line; fhence South 89°14’ East, 208.80 feot, along sald North Seciion line 1o the
Point of Beginning.

Also, EXCEPT, that part of the Northwest one-quarter of the Northwest one-quarter of Section 28, Town 27 North, Range 10 West,
more fully described as:  Commencing af the Northwest corner of Section 28: thence South 00°52'45” East, 816.43 feet along the
West line of said Section 28 to the Point of Beginning; thence confinuing south 00°52°45" East, 325.00 foet along said West line of
Section 28; thence North 89°49°30" East, 300.00 feet parallal with the North one~sixteenth line of said Section 28; thence North
00°52'45" Wost, 325.00 feet parallel with the said West line of sald Section 28; thence South 89°49'30" West, 300.00 feet parallel
with said North one-sixieenth line of Section 28 fo the Point of Beginning.

Sublect to the right of way of 4 Mile Road and Hammond Road.

REMAINDER PARCEL DESCRIPTION

Part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Townshlp 27 North, Range 10 West, East Bay Townshlp, Grand Traverse
County, Michigan, more fully described as follows:

Beginning ot the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence along the West fine of said section SO0°47°29"W 816.43 foef: thence
SBE30'16"E 300.00 feol; fhence SO0°47°29"W 325.00 feak; thence NBB°30'16"W 300.00 feet fo said West section line; thence along
said section line SO0°47'29"W 193.80 feet to the North 1/8 line of said section; thence along said 1 /8 line S88°24'26"E 1238.30
feel; thence parallel with and 50.00 feet o the Southeast of the centerline of an exisﬁng overhead slectric fransmission line
right-of—way (recorded in Liber 200, Page 499) N42°21°25"E 490.70 fesl; and N42°12'09"E 582.48 feet to the East line of the West
172 of the Northeast 1/4 of the Norihwast 1/4 of sald Section 28; thence along sald East line NO1°05'03'E 519.41 feef to the
North line of said Section 28; thence along soid North: line NB8%21°09"W 1951.91 feet fo the Point of Beginning, containing 50.85
acres of land, more or less,

Subject to the right of way of Four Mile Road and Hammond Road.

P:\2010720.02\CADD-Date\TCL&P Topography\dwg\Cerlified Survey Groleau.dwg Tab: Sheet 2 Saved by: mograf 09/13/11, 5:18pm Platted by: mograf 08/14/11, 2:22pm

Date: 11/11/2010 Ena
Scale: AS NOTED 3 * Engineers
Drow: HALA GoslingEzubak S
Chi'd.: JAL engineering sclences, inc, « Environmenial
Rev. " . T 1280 Bé{s?nc;sl l:ark Driggo Services
0 roverse City, N 49586-8607 .
231-845-9191  800~968~1062 ';‘;’c’z,s,‘;z’:‘fm
\Job No.: 2010720.02 Sheet: 2 of 2 Fox; 231-941-4603 )




EXHIBIT B

-

Y
%9 ‘ ‘ . o

£0°2060T02
N ol STV ORI

ORI
_BIOO GO

30 s —— |

-y
memas :
s i
i & !
W % / m
A _ aNVLS §

JONAdS ISN3C

somog pme yEErY Aup 9ssoAAL
NOXLVIS-90S GNONINVH LSVA
NVId BIXS

™~
e

\\
g
NN
— g = A -

5
s

aNvLS

Enteng.
=N

Ignz
i u%%m\&
Fe BET.
¥ ey \ / S/ M
Pusne— ]
hsf W - !
< Wi = 7T '
, S |
afe o - )
Lo .Iaf)g
= [ aNviS _
! 3 30NYdS IS0 ”
m T HOISSISHARL 2 v, \ *
4 00 N, ' ,
% / P8 ONVIS “ @
g 0 / & 30N8dS 3SN3C
i nang / g _
s v / o |
\ ’ \\ K i
¥ = o o \ a \ & ‘
oF = ) TS M \ _ \ ‘ “ @
E / VN ONYLS |
oy y Vay, 0N¥dS 3SNIQ |
o IB , [ y: o
i mma o | ﬂu N 4 N o H
wmm. g m YINUOASNYAL s \\ & “ v
i | a % . "
L ! - !
; i - v
; LITREP: -
I
|

51




EXHIBIT C

Traverse City Light & Power Department Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

East Bay Charter Township Planning Commission

Special Land Use: SLU 6-11, SPR 7-11 for
Traverse City Light & Power Department
Date: December 6, 2011

FINDINGS OF FACT

Background. The City of Traverse City Light & Power Department is a municipally-owned utility
that provides domestic electrical service to a significant portion of the region. ITC Holdings LLC,
owns and operates a large electrical transmission network, including the existing 138kV line
adjacent to the site. The proposed substation will be located on its own parcel with an adjoining
non-exclusive access easement G6-feet in width to provide a connection to Four Mile Road. The
substation site will be located about 1,200 feet east of Four Mile Road in an area of rolling hills
and dense stands of spruce trees. The facility will be well screened from view from surrounding
parcels and roads by existing vegetation, proposed plantings and the rolling nature of the terrain.
The two adjoining substations will occupy a fenced area consuming about one-half of the 6.5 acre
site, with the remainder consisting of new or existing vegetation, setbacks and drive areas. Because
of the extent of elevation change across the site, a fairly deep cut will be undertaken along the
southern boundary. This will be stabilized with a retaining wall to minimize grading. The
transmission line routing along Four Mile Road will consist of a poleforpole replacement
whenever possible, although somewhat taller poles will be necessary to provide required clearances
for cables and conductors. The property is a conforming lot in the Agricultural (AG) district and
the proposed replacement substation will occupy about 6.59 acres. The proposed facility is
considered a Major Essential Service Facilities and it is treated as a special land use in the AG
district.

The Planning Commission thoroughly considered the proposal in public hearing on December 6,
2011 following proper public notice and ultimately took the following action: Conditional
approval of the special land use and site plan, subject to the findings and conditions presented
below.

The following Exhibits support these findings of fact and the decision the decisions of the
Planning Commission:

¢ Special Land Use Application and attached additional information, including Exhibits A
through E, dated 10/7/2011;

¢ GRP Engineering Site Plan Set, including Sheets, T, TCEL, ITCEL, R-1, R-2 and D-1, and
Gosling-Czubak sheets C-1, C-2, C-3, C4 and L-1; all dated 11/2/2001;

FINDINGS

The approval process for a Special Land Use requires attention to the specific provisions applicable
to such facilities at Section 628, the general standards applicable to all special land uses and the

52




Traverse City Light & Power Department, Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

specific site plan approval standards. The following section addresses each of these provisions and
the findings of the Planning Commission:

1. Section 628, Major Essential Service Facilities.

a.

“Any above ground major essential service facility shall be fully secured from unauthorized
entry either by construction of the facility itself or through fencing which meets the
requirements of this ordinance.”

The entire site will be fenced and the site plan indicates the fence will be eight feet high
chainlink fence topped with three strands of barbed wire. Subject to the conditions of
approval calling for relocation of the fence to include the retaining wall or to top the wall,
the Planning Commission finds that this meets the ordinance requirement.

“As a condition of approval of a special land use permit, the Planning Commission may

require remote monitoring of major essential service facilities that may be vulnerable to
g ] Yy

damage or disruption.”

“Major essential service facilities located out-of-doors shall be screened from view from
adjoining properties and from public road rights-of-way with evergreen plantings planted at
such intervals as to provide an opaque screen within oneyear of planting. Equipment
buildings intended to house major essential service facilities, such as well houses, pump
buildings or equipment shelters, shall be constructed of face brick, decorative masonry,
cement board or wood lap siding designed to resemble nearby structures. Provided, that a
side of such equipment building that is not visible from a public rightofway, may be
constructed of common cement block or metal panels, if further screened with evergreen
landscaping.”

The two control building are proposed to have a metal panel exterior, but given the
isolated distance of the site from surrounding roads and the rolling and wooded nature of
the site, the Planning Commission finds that the buildings will not be readily visible from a
public roadway and therefore this will meet the ordinance requirement.

“All above ground major essential service facilities shall be located in conformance with the
yard, lot width and lot area standards of this ordinance. With the exception of elevated
water storage facilities and electrical transmission towers and poles, major essential service
facilities shall not exceed the maximum height requirements of the zoning district in which

they are located.”

The Planning Commission finds that because the proposed facility will consist of electrical
transmissions towers and poles the special land use is not impacted by the height
limitations of the underlying zoning district.

“A major essential service facility shall be considered an accessory use to any other
permitted or special land use, if it occupies no more than ten (10) percent of the parcel
which is shared with the principal use. A major essential service facility located on an
otherwise vacant parcel shall be considered the principal use of that parcel.”

o

53




Traverse City Light & Power Department, Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

As the only use on this parcel, the substations would be considered the principal use of the
property. The Planning Commission finds that the requirements of the ordinance are met
with respect to this condition.

“An above ground major essential service facility which is fenced or which is housed in an
equipment building shall include a sign placard of not more than two square feet which
shall indicate the owner or operator’s name, address and emergency contact information.
In addition, such facilities may include any required hazard warning signage.”

The Planning Commission finds that while the site plan provides proposed signage which
shall be appropriately located and sized to meet ordinance requirements pursuant to the
conditions of approval and the Planning Commission finds that this will meet the
ordinance requirement.

2. Section 602, 1, Special Land Use Approval Standards.

a.

“Be consistent with the adopted Township Comprehensive Plan.”

The Planning Commission finds that this standard is met as the Comprehensive Plan
designates the site as Residential - Medium to High Density even though its current zoning
is Agricultural. Ultimately the Township expects agricultural use of the site to give way to
residential development and such growth will require adequate and reliable electrical
energy which the substation can help to supply. In addition, because existing and
replanted vegetation and the rolling terrain will provide effective screening, the scale of the
facility can be mitigated even as future residential land uses begin to emerge.

“Be designed, constructed, operated and maintained to be consistent with the existing or
intended character of the general vicinity and that such a use will not change the essential
character of the area in which it is proposed.”

The Planning Commission finds that the new substation will be a departure from the
current character of the property itself. However, the vegetation and rolling terrain will
screen it from view and help to mitigate any impact on the character of the area
surrounding the site. In addition, while the facility will include some poles or towers that
exceed the height standard of the AG district, the impact on neighboring properties is
effectively mitigated both by intervening tree cover and the terrain of the site.
Furthermore, the existing power line that crosses the site has included taller transmission
towers for many years, so the introduction of additional transmission poles is not felt to be
a significant departure from current conditions. The Planning Commission finds that this
standard is met.

“Not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future uses in the same general vicinity and
in the community as a whole.”

The potential hazards of a high-voltage substation are well understood and the proposed
design includes fencing and signage to help protect the facility from unauthorized entry.
The tall retaining wall which is necessary to minimize grading and the loss of natural

L3~

54




Traverse City Light & Power Department, Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

h.

features, does create a potential hazard which needs to be addressed as outlined herein.
Subject to the conditions of approval, the Planning Commission finds that this standard is
met.

“Be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, such as highways, streets,
police and fire protection, stormwater drainage, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities
and schools or persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use
shall be able to provide adequately for such services.”

As an unoccupied facility, the substation will not place additional demands on municipal
services. Stormwater impacts will be addressed through the permeable surface throughout
much of the site and the two small detention basins along the access drive. The Planning
Commission finds that this standard is met, subject to the approval of the Road
Commission, MDOT, Metro Fire Department and Drain Commissioner.

“Not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for facilities and services and
will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.”

The proposed facility does not include any features that increase public costs for facilities
or services. The Planning Commission finds that this meets the ordinance requirement.

“Not involve uses, activities, processes, materials and equipment or conditions of operation
that will be detrimental to any person, property or general welfare by reason of excessive
production of traffic, noise, vibration, smoke, fumes, glare or odors.”

While the facility may generate some transformer noise, it will be mitigated both by the
isolation of the site and the surrounding land forms. The nearest residence is located
about 300 feet from the facility with a significant intervening stand of spruce trees and
about 14 feet of elevation difference to muffle and deflect audible noise. The Planning
Commission finds that this meets the ordinance requirement.

“Ensure that the environment shall be preserved in its natural state, insofar as practicable,
by minimizing tree and soil removal, and by topographic modifications that result in
maximum harmony with adjacent areas.”

The Planning Commission finds that while the footprint of the site will be changed, the
proposal to transplant many of the trees on the site and the effort to minimize grade
changes through the use of the retaining wall, helps to preserve much of the natural
features, insofar as practical. Beyond the site, the impact of this facility will be effectively
mitigated by the existing and transplanted trees and by the rolling terrain. The Planning
Commission finds that this standard is met.

Meet the intent and purpose of the Zoning Ordinance; be related to the standards
established in the Ordinance for the land use or activity under consideration; and will be in
compliance with these standards.

55




Traverse City Light & Power Department, Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

The Zoning Ordinance provides standards for Major Essential Service Facilities, and as
outlined here and subject to the conditions of approval, the proposed design appropriately
addresses those requirements. Within the AG district, the Township seeks to encourage
commercial agriculture. The passive nature of the substation is compatible with
agricultural activities and it will help to assure sufficient electrical energy within the growth
boundary over the long term, even as commercial agricultural continues at present. The
Planning Commission finds that this standard is met.

3. Section 820, 7, Site Plan Approval Standards. Section 820, 7, provides criteria for the review
of site plans and the following paragraphs highlight issues regarding the site plan the Planning
Commission has considered

a.

Ownership and easements. The applicant for special land use approval is the City of
Traverse City Light & Power Department which has an option to acquire the site of the
substations from the land owner. In addition, the Light & Power Department will grant an
easement to ITC Holdings, LLC, over a portion of the site for their switchyard. Finally,
Light & Power will utilize Consumers Energy poles to transmit power to its substation on
Parsons Road. In granting special land use approval pursuant to this application, the
applicant assures that the terms of approval are binding on all the various parties, and such
assurance is subject to review and confirmation by the Township Attorney.

Retaining wall. The nearly 20foot tall retaining wall to be located immediately south of
the substation presents a potential hazard to someone on foot or in an ATV and it provides
an elevated perspective into the substation which could be a security risk. As outlined in
the conditions of approval, the safety and security of this feature shall be addressed.

Exterior lighting for the facility includes both convenience lights at the entrances to the
control buildings and 30foot tall yard lighting to be used during non-daylight emergency or
maintenance activities. The site plan does not include any detail for these light fixtures,
but Section 210 requires night sky compliant design with 100% cut-off shielding and no
fixture mounted higher than 20 feet above the average grade of the site. According to the
attachment to the special land use application, these lights will normally not be in use, but
will be needed for emergency repairs, when they will be turned on manually. The elevation
of the property varies by about 40 feet making allowing some flexibility in the maximum
height of the light fixtures.

Signage. Detail on the proposed signs is provided on the site plan, but the proposed
location is not, Section 215, 9 would permit a single, four square foot free-standing sign at
the entrance drive. Such a sign could include information on both the Light & Power
facility and the ITC facility. In addition, smaller two square foot hazard warning signs may
be affixed to the fence and would be regarded as exempt per Section 215, 4, j.

Remote monitoring. The site is fairly isolated location of the facility and it will be manned
infrequently. The application mentions remote monitoring but does not provide further
detail. In verbal commentary before the Planning Commission, the applicant indicated

.5~

56




Traverse City Light & Power Department, Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

that remote monitoring will include systems to monitor the functionality of the equipment
as well as a security alarm on the access gates.

Transmission lines along Four Mile and the MDOT Rail Rightof-Way. The existing
Consumers Energy power poles along Four Mile Road are proposed to be replaced “pole-
for-pole” to accommodate the new transmission lines. In addition, the Light & Power
Department lines will be upgraded along the MDOT rail right-ofway which includes the
TART trail. The applicant and Planning Commission have discussed the process to
remove and replace these structures and measures that will be taken to minimize
disruption of traffic on the road and trail usage.

Landscaping Irrigation Waiver. Healthy and generous landscaping will be important to
softening the visual impact of this facility. The proposal to relocate existing trees on the
site will be helpful to providing an effective buffer at the outset, if the relocated trees
survive the transplanting operation. Section 229, 3, f, requires a two-year landscape
replacement surety and this can be supplemented by a perpetual replacement requirement
as a condition of approval.

4. DECISION AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL. Based on the foregoing review and
findings of fact, the proposed special land use and site plan is hereby approved, subject to the
following conditions:

a.

No preliminary or final earthwork, grading or timber removal shall be undertaken on the
site until a land use permit has been issued; provided that limited timber removal may be
undertaken solely for the purposes of completing soil borings.

The ownership and easement documents associated with the proposal shall be made
available to the Township Attorney to assure that there are no provisions in any of the
documents that might conflict with a conditional approval by the Planning Commission.

The site plan shall be revised to realign the security fencing to include the retaining wall

within the fenced area.

The applicant shall submit documentation satisfactory to the Zoning Administrator that all
exterior lighting shall comply with the requirements of Section 210; provided that
emergency work lighting to provide for the safety of workers on site may be excepted from
this requirement so long as it is illuminated only for such emergency repairs.

The signage on the facility shall include one free-standing sign at the entrance road in
accordance with Section 215, 9 as well as appropriate warning information and emergency
contact information as required by the ordinance and subject to final approval by the
Zoning Administrator.

The required irrigation of transplanted plantings shall be waived but approval shall be
conditioned on a requirement that the applicant shall post with the Township the required
surety for landscape viability and further shall replace any plantings that fail to become
established for a long as the facility is in existence.

57



Traverse City Light & Power Department, Special Land Use, Findings of Fact

g. Approval of the special land use and site plan shall be conditioned on the final comments
(if any) of the Road Commission, MDOT, Metro Fire Department and Drain
Commissioner.

58




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 26, 2012

% LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board ;Q

From: Ed Rice, Executive Director

Date: June 21, 2012

Subject: METC Easements for East Hammond (formerly East Side) Substation
Project

Enclosed in your packet is a proposed Resolution that approves two easements.

The first easement, Transmission Line Right-Of-Way Easement Agreement, allows the
Michigan Electric Transmission Company (METC) to tap into their existing pole line
adjacent to Traverse City Light and Power's (TCL&P) property and connect a new 138kV
transmission line into METC’s Electric Substation to be constructed.

The second easement, Electric Substation Easement Agreement, allows for the
construction of METC’s substation on TCL&P’s property, which will be adjacent to the
Traverse City Light and Power substation scheduled for construction.

TCL&P is also conveying access rights to use a 66ft easement obtained by TCL&P for
ingress/egress (driveway corridor to the property).

TCL&P staff and counsel have thoroughly reviewed and analyzed the proposed easements
and believe they are in the utility’s best interest to approve.

If the Board is in agreement with Staff's recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,

THAT THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD APPROVE THE TRANSMISSION LINE RIGHT-OF-
WAY EASEMENT AGREEMENT AND THE ELECTRIC SUBSTATION EASEMENT
AGREEMENT, BOTH SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY COUNSEL AND ADOPTS
A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE EASEMENTS WITH METC RELATED TO THE
EAST HAMMOND SUBSTATION PROJECT; SUBJECT TO THE CITY COMMISSION
CONCURRENCE IN THE CERTIFICATION OF SURPLUS STATUS.

59




),

S

2
&

(@

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER DEPARTMENT
RESOLUTION
CERTIFYING EASEMENT INTERESTS IN EAST HAMMOND SUBSTATION
PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS

WHEREAS, the Traverse City Light and Power Department (“TCL&P”) owns property in
East Bay Township, Grand Traverse County purchased for the East Hammond Substation; and

WHEREAS, the East Hammond Substation needs to interconnect with the transmission line
adjacent to that property owned by the Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LLC (METC);
and

WHEREAS, METC has requested easements to use a portion of the property for
interconnection facilities; and

WHEREAS, the use by METC is needed for the TCL&P substation to function; and

WHEREAS, the area to be occupied by METC is space not needed for the TCL&P
substation, and is surplus; and

WHEREAS, Easements have been negotiated with METC for its interconnection facilities
and transmission connection;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the limited easements described in the
proposed Easements are certified as not necessary for the operation of the Light and Power
Department; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairman and Secretary are authorized to execute
the Electric Substation Easement Agreement and the Transmission Line Right-of-Way Easement
Agreement if the surplus status of this property is confirmed by the Traverse City Commission
pursuant to City Charter Section 179(b).

I hereby certify that the above Resolution was
adopted on , 2012, at the Regular
TCL&P Board Meeting held in the Commission
Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman
Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan.

Edward E. Rice
TCL&P Board Secretary




TRANSMISSION LINE RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENT AGREEMENT

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that, on the day of July, 2012,
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT and POWER DEPARTMENT, a Michigan municipal electric utility,
whose address is 1131 Hastings Street, Traverse City, Michigan 49686 (“Owner”), for good and
valuable consideration in the amount of $1.00, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,
does grant, warrant and convey a transmission line right-of-way easement (“Easement”) unto
MICHIGAN ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION COMPANY, LLC, a Michigan limited liability
company, whose address is 27175 Energy Way, Novi, Michigan 48377 (“Grantee”), its
successors and assigns, for the perpetual right of its or their agents, contractors, and employees to
enter at all times upon and to place, construct, operate, maintain or to reconstruct, repair,
upgrade, and replace an electric transmission line or lines, related facilities including fiber optic
cable and any buried grounding system thereof and to transmit electricity on said transmission
line or lines, and any grounding system upon land situated in Section 28, T27N, R10W,
Township of East Bay, County of Grand Traverse, State of Michigan, more particularly
described as the Transmission Line Easement Area as defined later in this Transmission Line
Right-of-Way Easement Agreement,

together with all rights and privileges therein necessary or convenient for the full enjoyment or
use thereof for the purposes described including, but not limited to, the right of ingress and
egress to and from said easement on, over and across a gravel drive along the southern side of
Owner’s Land.

“Owner’s Land” is more particularly described as follows:

Part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Township 27 North, Range 10
West, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, more fully described as
follows:

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence along the West line of
said section S00°4729"W 1335.23 feet to the North 1/8 line of said section; thence along
said 1/8 line S88°24'26"E 1238.30 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence parallel with
and 50.00 feet to the Southeast of the centerline of an existing overhead electric
transmission line right-of-way (recorded in Liber 200, Page 499) N42°21'25"E 490.70
feet; and N42°12'09"E 582.48 feet to the East line of the West 1/2 of the Northeast 1/4 of
the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 28; thence along said East line S01°05'03"W 813.89
feet to said North 1/8 line; thence along said 1/8 line N88°24'26"W 706.76 feet to the
Point of Beginning, containing 6.59 acres of land, more or less.

61




Together with an easement, 66.00 feet in width, for ingress and egress and for the
installation and maintenance of public and private utilities more particularly described in
that certain Easement dated April 5, 2012, and recorded on April 9, 2012, as Document
Number 2012R-06216, in the Grand Traverse County Records, State of Michigan (the
“Access Easement”), more fully described as follows:

Part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Township 27 North, Range 10
West, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, more fully described as
follows:

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence along the West line of
said section S00°4729"W 1335.23 feet to the North 1/8 line of said section and the Point
of Beginning; thence 66.00 feet North of and contiguous with the following described
line: along the North 1/8 line of said section S88°24'26"E 1238.30 feet to the Point of
Ending, the sidelines of the above easement shorten or lengthen to originate at the West
line of said Section 28 and to terminate at a line bearing N42°2125"E from the Point of

Ending.
Subject to the Right of Way of Four Mile Road.

TRANSMISSION LINE EASEMENT AREA is described as:

Easement Description

A 160 foot wide Transmission Line Easement in that part of the North % of the
Northwest ¥4 of Section 28, Township 27 North, Range 10 West, East Bay Township,
Grand Traverse County, Michigan, lying 80 feet each side of and coincident to a
centerline described as:

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence along the West line of
said section S00°47°29”W 1335.23 feet to the North 1/8 line of said section; thence along
said 1/8 line S88°24°26”E 1665.21 feet, thence NO00°00°25”E 390.40 feet thence
S90°00°00”E 127.29 feet to the Point of Beginning of the Easement Centerline; thence
NO00°00°00”E 24.62 feet, thence N47°47°51”W 138.31 feet to the Point of Ending of the
Easement Centerline.

The sidelines of the above easement lengthen or shorten to begin at the north line of a
fenced substation easement, to meet at all angle points, and to end at the westerly East
Hammond Road Substation property line.

Exhibit A is a sketch of the Grantor’s Land and the Transmission Line Easement Area
and is attached hereto and is incorporated herein.

1. Vegetation Management. The full right is conveyed to Grantee, its successors or
assigns and its or their agents, contractors, or employees to trim, cut, remove, destroy or
otherwise control and treat with herbicides all trees, bushes or brush or vegetation now or




hereafter standing or growing under or within Transmission Line Easement Area Owner
reserves the right to plant low-growing shrubs to serve as a vegetation screen and Grantee agrees
to protect such vegetation screen from damage when exercising the rights herein granted.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to Owner’s planting of low-growing shrubs or other
vegetation described in the preceding sentence, Owner must receive the prior written consent of
Grantee relative to the size, type and location of landscaping or the planting of vegetation
described in the preceding paragraph. Such consent shall be consistent with East Bay Township
zoning requirements for vegetative screening.

2. Compliance with Laws. Grantee shall use Owner’s Land in compliance with all
applicable Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, ordinances and in accordance with the
Decision and Conditions of Approval set forth in Section 4(a), Section 4(b), Section 4(d) and
Section 4(e) of the East Bay Charter Township Planning Commission Special Land Use approval
6-11 and Site Plan Review 7-11 dated December 6, 2011.

3. Assignment of the Access Easement. Grantor hereby grants to Grantee, its successors
and assigns, and its agents, contractors and employees, the perpetual right to enter at all times
and to use the Access Easement and Grantor’s future gravel access driveway from Four Mile
Road. Grantor hereby assigns to Grantee, and its successors and assigns, the Access Easement
and the right to use, in perpetuity, its ingress and egress easement described in the Access
Easement, for the purposes of this Easement.

4. Poles and Facilities. Grantee agrees that all poles, towers, wires, and other facilities,
shall be installed on the aforementioned easement at Grantee’s expense, and the same shall
remain the property of Grantee.

5. Structures. No buildings or other above-ground structures, except fencing, shall be
installed, constructed or permitted in the Transmission Line Easement Area without Grantee’s
prior written consent which consent may be given or withheld in Grantee’s sole discretion.
However, any fencing installed within the Transmission Line Easement Area pursuant to the
terms of the preceding sentence must be approved by Grantee prior to the construction of said
fencing. Grantee may remove prohibited structures from the Transmission Line Easement Area
without prior notice and without responsibility for any damages that occurs as a result of such
removal.

6. Abandonment or Termination. Should the easement herein conveyed not be used by
Grantee, its successors and assigns, for any purpose herein granted for a period of two years,
from and after the date of issuance, or otherwise be abandoned by Grantee, then and in that event
said easement shall terminate. Grantee herein, for itself, its successors and assigns, further
agrees upon complete abandonment of its facility by Grantee as deemed by Grantee or upon
termination and upon request of the Owner of said land showing a prima facie title to same, to
release and quit-claim all rights secured hereby on said land to the then Owner. In the event of
abandonment or termination of the rights herein conveyed, Grantee agrees to remove its property
from Owner’s property in a good and workmanlike manner.

63




7. Interconnection Agreement. This easement shall remain in full force and effect until
such time as any applicable interconnection agreement between the two Parties is terminated,
including time allowed for retirement and removal of facilities in a reasonable amount of time
unless otherwise mutually agreed to. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event any applicable
interconnection agreement between the two Parties is terminated as set forth in the preceding
sentence, Grantee shall have the unconditional, first and primary right to purchase Owner’s
Land from Grantor at fair market value. In the event Grantee exercises its right to purchase the
Owner’s Land from Grantor as described in the preceding sentence, the Access Easement shall
continue in full force and effect and Grantor, upon request by Grantee, shall provide
documentation which confirms the continuation of the grant of the Access Easement to Grantee
in recordable form.

8. Title and Assignment. The undersigned warrants that the undersigned owns the
aforementioned lands and that said lands are free and clear of all encumbrances and liens. This
Easement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs,
representatives, licensees, lessees, successors and assigns.

9. Taxes. This Easement is exempt from County real estate transfer tax pursuant to MCL
§207.505(f) and exempt from State real estate transfer tax pursuant to MCL §207.526(f). This
Easement is personal property under the General Property Tax Act of the State of Michigan.
MCL 211.8(g). Grantor is a tax exempt organization. All taxes resulting from Grantee’s
facilities are the obligation of Grantee.

WHEREFORE, the Parties have executed this Transmission Line Right-of-Way
Easement Agreement effective on the date first written above.

OWNER:

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
DEPARTMENT

Dated: , 2012

By: Edward E. Rice
Its: Executive Director

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF MICHIGAN )

64




) SS.
COUNTY OF GRAND TRAVERSE)

On this the day of , 2012, before me a Notary Public in and for said
county, Edward E. Rice, Executive Director, Traverse City Light and Power Department,
individually appeared to me, known to be the person described in and who executed the within
instrument and who duly acknowledged the same to be his free act and deed.

, Notary Public
County, Michigan
Acting in the County of

My Commission expires:

GRANTEE:

MICHIGAN ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION COMPANY, LLC,
a Michigan limited liability company

By: ITC Holdings Corp., its manager
By:

Name: Christine Mason Soneral
Title: Vice President and General Counsel- Utility Operations

Dated: , 2012

65




ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) SS.
COUNTY OF OAKLAND )
On this the day of , 2012, before me a Notary Public in and for said

county, Christine Mason Soneral, the Vice President and General Counsel- Utility Operations of
ITC Holdings Corp., the Manager of Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LLC,
individually appeared to me, known to be the person described in and who executed the within
instrument and who duly acknowledged the same to be her free act and deed.

, Notary Public
County, Michigan
Acting in the County of

My Commission expires:

This instrument drafted by:
W. Peter Doren, Esq. (P23637)
Sondee, Racine & Doren, PLC
310 W. Front Street, Suite 300
Traverse City, MI 49684

When recorded return to:
Elaine Clifford

ITC Holdings Corp.
27175 Energy Way
Novi, MI 48377

Attn: Real Estate Dept.

66




EXHIBIT

NORTH

NW COR
SEC 28, T27N, R10W

POE OF /
TRANSMISSION LINE

EASEMENT CENTERLINE

{00°00'00”E
@ TOW .62 [—_
l
| . /
X & |/
3|2
w

N

A

LY

Q
S
S

¢S ',
\?& )S/'.v
GNSE

S90°00'00" E
127.29'

POB OF TRANSMIS;
LINE EASEMENT
CENTERLINE

|—derd
B
H

T 39040 — ——

\)éf
&
PPROVED J\

IVEWAY ACGESS
TO 4 MILE

~

VTN

L

b

PROPERTY_UNE

e e e 0]

S88°24'26"E

(" P:\2010892.02\CADD-Data\TCLP East Side Substation\dwg\ITC TRANGMISSION LINE EASEMENT.dwg  Tab: ITC Transmission Line Eosement Saved by: magraf 6/22/2012 10:29 AM Plotted by: Martin Graf 6/22/2012 11:36 AM )

1665.21° I

1/8 COR NORTH 1/8 LINE

T~_ W 1/4 COR

SEC 28, T27N, R10OW

 Gient: Sheet 1 of 2 | [yob No: 201272071
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER Date:  06/22/12
EAST HAMMOND SUBSTATION g:;’":n ‘”ﬂﬁg
ChK'd.: DPG

Part of the NW 1/4 of section 28, T27N, R10W

\_ East Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan ov:

GoslingCzubal: .

engineering sclences, Inc.
1280 Business Park Drive
Traverse City, Ml 49686~8607
231-946~9191  BOO--968-1062




EXHIBIT A

EASEMENT DESCRIPTION

A 160 foot wide Transmission Line Easement in that part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section
28, Township 27 North, Range 10 West, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, lying 80
feet each side of and coincident to a centerline described as:

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence along the West line of said section
$00°47'29"W 1335.23 feet to the North 1/8 line of said section; thence along said 1/8 line $88°24'26"E
1665.21 feet, thence N00°00'25"E 390.40 feet thence $90°00'00"E 127.29 feet to the Point of Beginning of
the Easement Centerline; thence N00°00'00"E 24.62 feet, thence N47°47'51"W 138.31 feet to the Point of
Ending of the Easement Centerline.

The sidelines of the above easement lengthen or shorten to begin at the north line of a fenced substation
easement, to meet at all angle points, and to end at the westerly East Hammond Road Substation

(! P:\2010892.02\CADD~Data\TCLP East Side Substation\dwg\[TC TRANSMISSION LINE EASEMENT.dwg  Tab: ITC Transmission Line Easement Description Saved by: magraf 6/22/2012 10:29 AM  Plotted by: Martin Graf 6/22/2012 14:37 AM

property line.
( Clet: Sheet 2 of 2 | foh No:  2012720.71
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER Date:  06/22/12 { GoslingCzubali | Sioren
EAST HAMMOND SUBSTATION Scale: - AS NOTED engineering sciences, inc. - Environmental
Drown: v Tomo G RS0 - Lomcleon
' . p -~ + Landscape
Part of the NW 1/4 of section 28, T27N, R10W chicd: DPG B-sl6-o101 0098102 Architecture

\_East Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan

68




ELECTRIC SUBSTATION EASEMENT AGREEMENT

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that, on the day of July, 2012, for
good and valuable consideration in the amount of $1.00, the receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, Grantor grants to Grantee, its successors and assigns, a permanent electric
substation easement over, under, across and through a part of a certain parcel of real estate owned
by Grantor described herein as “Grantor’s Land” and the easement to Grantee is described
herein as the “Easement Area.”

Grantor: TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT and POWER DEPARTMENT, a Michigan municipal
electric utility, whose address is 1131 Hastings Street, Traverse City, Michigan 49686.

Grantee: MICHIGAN ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION COMPANY, LLC, a Michigan limited
liability company, whose address is 27175 Energy Way, Novi, Michigan 48377.

Grantor and Grantee are each referred to herein as a “Party,” are collectively referred to herein
as the “Parties.”

Grantor’s Land is described as:

Part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Township 27 North, Range 10
West, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, more fully described as
follows:

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence along the West line of
said section S00°4729"W 1335.23 feet to the North 1/8 line of said section; thence along
said 1/8 line S88°24'26"E 1238.30 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence parallel with and
50.00 feet to the Southeast of the centerline of an existing overhead electric transmission
line right-of-way (recorded in Liber 200, Page 499) N42°21'25"E 490.70 feet; and
N42°12'09"E 582.48 feet to the East line of the West 1/2 of the Northeast 1/4 of the
Northwest 1/4 of said Section 28; thence along said East line S01°05'03"W 813.89 feet to
said North 1/8 line; thence along said 1/8 line N88°24'26"W 706.76 feet to the Point of
Beginning, containing 6.59 acres of land, more or less.

Together with an easement, 66.00 feet in width, for ingress and

69




egress and for the installation and maintenance of public and private utilities more
particularly described in that certain Easement dated April 5, 2012, and recorded on April
9, 2012, as Document Number 2012R-06216, in the Grand Traverse County Records,
State of Michigan (the “Access Easement”), more fully described as follows:

Part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Township 27 North, Range 10
West, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, more fully described as
follows:

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence along the West line of
said section S00°4729"W 1335.23 feet to the North 1/8 line of said section and the Point
of Beginning; thence 66.00 feet North of and contiguous with the following described
line: along the North 1/8 line of said section S88°24"26"E 1238.30 feet to the Point of
Ending, the sidelines of the above easement shorten or lengthen to originate at the West
line of said Section 28 and to terminate at a line bearing N42°21'25"E from the Point of
Ending.

Subject to the Right of Way of Four Mile Road.
The Easement Area is described as:

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence along the West
line of said section S00°4729"W 1335.23 feet to the North 1/8 line of said
section; thence along said 1/8 line S88°24'26"E 1665.21 feet, thence N00°00'25"E
60.39 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence N00°0025"E 330.01 feet, thence
S90°00'00"E 220.00 feet, thence S00°00'00"W 330.01 feet, thence N90°00'00"W
220.04 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 1.67 acres of land, more or less.

The Construction, Maintenance and Access Easement Area is described as:

An easement for a Construction, Maintenance, and Access Area in that part of the North
1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Township 27 North, Range 10 West, East Bay
Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, more fully described as follows:

A strip of land 20 feet in width, lying between the Easement Area and the following
described line; Commencing at the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence along the
West line of said section S00°47'29"W 1335.23 feet to the North 1/8 line of said section;
thence along said 1/8 line S88°2426"E 1665.21 feet, thence N00°0025"E 60.39 feet to
the Southwest Corner of said Easement Area; thence continuing N0O0°00'25"E along the
West Line of said Easement Area 183.05 feet to the north fence line of a fenced Traverse
City Light and Power substation facility and the Point of Beginning; thence along said
north fence line N89°59'50"W 20.00 feet; thence parallel with said Substation Easement
the following five (5) courses, NO0°00'25"E 166.96 feet, S90°00'00"E 260.00 feet,

70




S00°00'00"W 370.01 feet, N90°00'00"W 260.04 feet, and NO0°00'25"E 69.02 feet to the
south fence line of said fenced Traverse City Light and Power substation facility; thence
along said south fence line S89°59'S0"E 20.00 feet to said Easement Area and the Point
of ending.

Said Construction, Maintenance, and Access Easement Area to be encumbered by
a retaining wall along the south line and along a portion of the east line of the
Construction, Maintenance, and Access Easement Area, with the retaining wall to
be a minimum of 10 feet outside the Easement Area.

The Easement Area together with the Access Easement and Construction,
Maintenance and Access Easement Area shall be collectively referred to herein as
the “Substation Easement Area”.

Exhibit A is a sketch of the Grantor’s Land and the Substation Easement Area
and is attached hereto and is incorporated herein.

Exhibit B is a sketch of the Grantor’s Land and the Construction, Maintenance,
and Access Easement Area and is attached hereto and is incorporated herein.

This Easement is subject to the following:

1. Purpose. The purpose of this Easement is to construct, operate, reconstruct, repair,
modify, improve, upgrade, maintain, replace and remove an electric substation within the
Easement Area consisting of poles, towers, conductors, insulators, transformers, capacitors,
conduits, cross-arms, wites, cables, control center buildings, and other miscellaneous equipment
for the transformation, switching, and transmission of electricity. It is understood that the
Easement Area described above is located within Grantor’s Land and is to be fenced. In
addition, the purpose of this Easement is to grant Grantee the right to enter upon the
Construction, Maintenance and Access Easement Area to construct, maintain, access, construct,
operate, reconstruct, repair, modify, improve, upgrade, maintain, replace and remove the electric
substation facilities and equipment to be located on the Easement Area pursuant to the terms of
this Easement.

2. Compliance with Laws. Grantee shall use Grantor’s Land in compliance with all
applicable Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, ordinances and in accordance with the
Decision and Conditions of Approval set forth in Section 4(a), Section 4(b), Section 4(d) and
Section 4(e) of the East Bay Charter Township Planning Commission Special Land Use approval
6-11 and Site Plan Review 7-11 dated December 6, 2011.

3. Assignment of the Access Easement. Grantor hereby grants to Grantee, its successors
and assigns, and its agents, contractors and employees, the perpetual right to enter at all times

71




and to use the Access Easement and Grantor’s future gravel access driveway from Four Mile
Road located within the Access Easement. Grantor hereby assigns to Grantee and its successors
and assigns, the Access Easement and the right to use, in perpetuity, its ingress and egress
easement described in the Access Easement for the purposes of this Easement.

4, Vegetation Management. Grantee may trim, cut, remove, destroy or otherwise control
or treat with herbicides any trees, bushes, branches, weeds, grasses, vegetation and roots growing
in the Easement Area or that could, in Grantee’s opinion, grow into the Easement Area,
EXCEPT, Grantee may not trim, cut down, remove, or otherwise control any landscaping planted
by Grantor without the express written consent of Grantor, which consent shall not be
unreasonably denied, conditioned or delayed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to Grantor’s
planting of landscaping or other vegetation described in the preceding sentence, Grantor must
receive the prior written consent of Grantee relative to the size, type and location of landscaping
or the planting of vegetation described in the preceding paragraph. Such consent shall be
consistent with East Bay Township zoning requirements for vegetative screening. Grantee shall
notify Grantor prior to any herbicide use in accordance with applicable law. Only EPA-approved
herbicides for electric substations may be applied.

5. Restoration of Property Damage. If Grantee, its employees, contractors, agents, or their
vehicles or equipment, cause damage to Grantor’s Land while using Grantor’s Land for the
purposes stated in this Easement, then Grantee shall restore Grantor’s Land as nearly as can be to
its original condition.

6. Indemnification. Grantee shall indemnify, defend and hold the owner of Grantor’s Land
harmless from and against all claims, liabilities, damages and expenses (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees) relating to accidents, injuries, loss, or damage of or to any person or property
arising from Grantee’s sole negligence or intentional or willful acts or omissions of Grantee, its
employees, contractors, agents, licensees, lessees, successors and assigns, and those acting on
behalf of the Grantee.

7. Insurance. Throughout the term of this Easement, the Grantee shall procure and
maintain commercial general liability insurance against claims for personal injury (including
contractual liability arising under the indemnity contained in Paragraph 6 above), death, or
property damage occurring upon the Easement Area, with combined single limit coverage of not
less than an aggregate of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) and naming the owner of the
Grantor’s Land (provided the Grantee has been supplied with the name of the owner of the
Grantor’s Land in the event of a change thereof) as an additional insured, and at all times provide
evidence of such coverage to the owner of the Grantor’s Land, upon written request therefor.

8. Successors. This Easement runs with the land and binds and benefits Grantor’s and
Grantee’s successors and assigns.

9. Abandonment or Temination. Should the easement herein conveyed not be used by
Grantee, its successors and assigns, for any purpose herein granted for a period of two years,

72




from and after the date of issuance, or otherwise be abandoned by Grantee, then and in that event
said easement shall terminate. Grantee herein, for itself, its successors and assigns, further agrees
upon complete abandonment of its facility by Grantee as deemed by Grantee or upon termination
and upon request of the Owner of said land showing a prima facie title to same, to release and
quit-claim all rights secured hereby on said land to the then Owner. In the event of abandonment
or termination of the rights herein conveyed, Grantee agrees to remove its property from Owner’s
property in a good and workmanlike manner.

10. Interconnection Agreement. This easement shall remain in full force and effect until
such time as any applicable interconnection agreement between the two Parties is terminated,
including time allowed for retirement and removal of facilities in a reasonable amount of time
unless otherwise mutually agreed to. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event any applicable
interconnection agreement between the two Parties is terminated as set forth in the preceding
sentence, Grantee shall have the unconditional, first and primary right to purchase Grantor’s
Land from Grantor at fair market value. In the event Grantee exercises its right to purchase the
Grantor’s Land from Grantor as described in the preceding sentence, the Access Easement shall
continue in full force and effect and Grantor, upon request by Grantee, shall provide
documentation which confirms the continuation of the grant of the Access Easement to Grantee
in recordable form.

11. Notice. All notices shall be sent by the United States Postal Service, or electronic mail,
properly addressed to the Parties at their addresses listed below, or may be served personally, on
the following authorized representative, or their successors, of the Party to whom the notice is
directed:

Grantor’s Representative: Grantee’s Representative:
Christine Mason Soneral
Executive Director VP and General Counsel, Utility Operations
Traverse City Light & Power ITC Holdings Corporation
1131 Hastings Street 27175 Energy Way
Traverse City, MI 49686 Novi, MI 48377

Email: csoneral@itctransco.com

12.  Taxes. Grantor is a tax exempt organization. All taxes resulting from any of Grantee’s
facilities are the obligation of Grantee. This Easement is personal property under the General
Property Tax Act of the State of Michigan. MCL 211.8(g).

This Easement is exempt from County real estate transfer tax pursuant to MCL §207.505(f) and
exempt from State real estate transfer tax pursuant to MCL §207.526(f).

WHEREFORE, the Parties have entered into this Electric Substation Easement Agreement

/3



effective on the date first written above.

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

DEPARTMENT
Dated: ,2012
By: Edward E. Rice
Its: Executive Director
ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) SS.
COUNTY OF GRAND TRAVERSE)
On this the day of , 2012, before me a Notary Public in and for said

county, Edward E. Rice, Executive Director, Traverse City Light and Power Department,
individually appeared to me, known to be the person described in and who executed the within

instrument and who duly acknowledged the same to be his free act and deed.

, Notary Public
County, Michigan
Acting in the County of

My Commission expires:

74




MICHIGAN ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION COMPANY, LLC,
a Michigan limited liability company

By: ITC Holdings Corp., its manager
By:

Name: Christine Mason Soneral
Title: Vice President and General Counsel- Utility Operations

Dated: , 2012

75




ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) SS.
COUNTY OF OAKLAND )
On this the day of , 2012, before me a Notary Public in and for said

county, Christine Mason Soneral, the Vice President and General Counsel- Utility Operations of
ITC Holdings Corp., the Manager of Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LLC,
individually appeared to me, known to be the person described in and who executed the within
instrument and who duly acknowledged the same to be her free act and deed.

, Notary Public
County, Michigan
Acting in the County of

My Commission expires:

This instrument drafted by:
W. Peter Doren, Esq. (P23637)
Sondee, Racine & Doren, PLC
310 W. Front Street, Suite 300
Traverse City, MI 49684

When recorded return to:
Elaine Clifford

ITC Holdings Corp.
27175 Energy Way
Novi, MI 48377

Attn: Real Estate Dept.

76




EXHIBIT A

- EASEMENT AREA ~ o
S g
5 - / ©
2 NW COR :
E @~ SEC 28, T27N, R1OW / S,
;. PIG
3
£
g ;
£ 18 |
£ 71
: i |
| S— |
: E
2 . -
A ; :
£ 1
= I/
o KN
LI m—
2 ~ﬁ¢ RIS o ss POINT OF BEGINNING
< \1 /8 coR? \ EASEMENT AREA
5 T NORTH 1/8 LINE
g TS~ W 1/4 COR
= SEC 28, T27N, R10W
\.
( Client: Sheet 1 of 2 | [yob No.: 201272071
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER Dot 06/22/12 GoslingCzubak Sremrs
EAST HAMMOND SUBSTATION Scale: 1"=100’ engineering aclences, inc. - Environmental
Dra: MAC s Cap W RS0 - Lanlacay
Part of the NW 1/4 of Section 28, T27N, Riow | [ onKd: PG = miweed weom Ariiode

ev.:

. East Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan




EXHIBIT A
EASEMENT AREA

EASEMENT AREA DESCRIPTION

An easement for an electric substation in that part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28,
Township 27 North, Range 10 West, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, more fully
described as follows:

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence along the West line of said section
S00°47'29"W 1335.23 feet to the North 1/8 line of said section; thence along said 1/8 line $88°24'26"E
1665.21 feet, thence N00°00'25"E 60.39 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence N00°00'25"E 330.01 feet,
thence $90°00'00"E 220.00 feet, thence S00°00'00"W 330.01 feet, thence N90°00'00"W 220.04 feet to the
Point of Beginning, containing 1.67 acres of land, more or less.

(" P:\2010892.02\CADD-Data\TCLP East Side Substation\awg\ITC SUBSTATION EASEMENT.dwg Tob: ITC Easement Description Saved by: magraf 6/22/2012 11:05 AM  Plotted by: Martin Graf 6/22/2012 11:34 AW

(" Cliont:
Clfent: Sheet 2 of 2 | [ yoh No: 2012720.71
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER Date: ~ 06/21/12 i GoslingCzubali St
EAST HAMMOND SUBSTATION Sce: S NOTED enaineering selsnees, ine. - Envrenmental
Drawn: MAG . 1280 B&:i;wsMs] :ggta 6D"gs°o7 Services
'y raverse City, - + Land.
Part of the NW 1/4 of Section 28, T27N, R10W Gk PG T miesis W00w02  Architacture

\_ East Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan

78




EXHIBIT B

¥ CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE,

™~ AND ACCESS EASEME/]NT AREA
a4

—— ke 28, T27N, R1OW | /

CONSTRUCTION,
MAINTENANCE,
AND ACCESS

POINT OF
BEGINNING

NBg°59’ 50"W

370.07°

NOQ°00'25"E,

il

W \=‘”

’/J

__ S88°24'26"E

HT

1/8 COR

T~~_W 1/4 COR

SEC 28, T27N, R10W

NOO"OO 25"E

(" P:\2010892.02\CADD—Data\TCLP East Side Substation\dwg\iTC SUBSTATION EASEMENT.dwg Tab: ITC Construction Maintenance Easement Saved by: magrof 6/22/2012 11:05 AM_ Plotted by: Martin Graf 6/22/2012 11:33 AW )

\ 1665.21" R M
\ NORTH 1/8 LINE\

GAS
PIG

e

PROPERTY_LINE 4

™~

' Traverse City, M| 436868607
Part of the NW 1/4 of Section 28, T27N, R10W g'e‘t ds DPG 21-546-9161_ 800-068-1062
\ East Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan h

Client: Sheet 1 of 2 11 ob No: 2012720.71 « Engi
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER Date:  08/21/12 GoslingGzubal . suveyers
EAST HAMMOND SUBSTATION ~ ||Se =i e ey " Etanmenta

* Landscape

Archltecture




EXHIBIT B

CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE,
AND ACCESS EASEMENT AREA

CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, AND ACCESS EASEMENT AREA DESCRIPTION

An easement for a Construction, Maintenance, and Access Area in that part of the North 1/2 of the
Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Township 27 North, Range 10 West, East Bay Township, Grand Traverse
County, Michigan, more fully described as follows:

A strip of land 20 feet in width, lying between the Easement Area and the following described line;
Commencing at the Northwest Corner of said Section 28; thence along the West line of said section
500°47'29"W 1335.23 feet to the North 1/8 line of said section; thence along said 1/8 line 588°24'26"E
1665.21 feet, thence N00°00'25"E 60.39 feet to the Southwest Corner of said Easement Area; thence
continuing NOO°00'25"E along the West Line of said Easement Area 183.05 feet to the north fence line of a
fenced Traverse City Light and Power substation facility and the Point of Beginning; thence along said
north fence line N89°59'50"W 20.00 feet; thence parallel with said Substation Easement the following five
(5) courses, N0O0°00'25"E 166.96 feet, $90°00'00"E 260.00 feet, S00°00'00"W 370.01 feet, N90°00'00"W
260.04 feet, and N00°00'25"E 69.02 feet to the south fence line of said fenced Traverse City Light and
Power substation facility; thence along said south fence line $89°59'50"E 20.00 feet to said Easement Area
and the Point of ending.

Said Construction, Maintenance, and Access Easement Area to be encumbered by a retaining wall along
the south line and along a portion of the east line of the Construction, Maintenance, and Access Easement
Area, with the retaining wall to be a minimum of 10 feet outside the Easement Area

QN (" P:\2010892.02\CADD~Dato\TCLP East Side Substation\dwg\TC SUBSTATION EASEMENT.dwg  Tob: ITC Construction Maintenance Description Saved by: magraf 6/22/2012 11:05 AM Plotted by: Martin Graf 6/22/2012 11:35 AM )
= )
3

ent: Sheet 2 of 2 | [ yon No: 201272071

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER Date:  06/21/12 " GoslingCzubal Sevees
EAST HAMMOND SUBSTATION Scale: AS NOTED engineering sclences, inc. - Environmental
Drawn: MAG . r;\isrgemc%mms :3& GD_rg/go . far;lces
Part of the NW 1/4 of Section 28, T27N, R1OW Chi'd: PG wi-sis- o0l so-sei02  gropncdil

Rev.:

\_ Eost Bay Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 26, 2012

RAVERSE CITY

IGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board ' /2/
From: Ed Rice, Executive Director ; J
Date: June 22, 2012

Subject: Hall Street Tenant Lease Agreement

Attached is a lease agreement between Traverse City Light & Power and Potters Fine Pastries, Inc. for the
tenant space at 130 Hall Street for your consideration.

Potters Fine Pastries, Inc. is local company that has been in business in the city and a customer of Light &
Power for many years. They plan to offer an additional retail store for their products which will include
soups, salads, wraps, Panini sandwiches, ice cream, and baked goods. Most items will be prepared at their
8™ Street location and brought over to the Hall Street location.

Staff recommends approval of a 36 month lease with an option to renew for another 60 months. The monthly
rental rate is competitive with rates in this area and allow for inflationary increased in the future. A financial
statement is attached for your information. If you concur with staff’s recommendation the following motion
would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY

THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO
ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH POTTERS FINE PASTRIES, INC. AT THE
TENANT SPACE AT 130 HALL STREET FOR A PERIOD OF 36 MONTHS, WITH AN OPTION
TO EXTEND SAID LEASE FOR 60 ADDITIONAL MONTHS, SUBJECT TO APPROVAL ASTO
FORM BY COUNSEL.

81




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

Income:

Potter's Pastries

Rental Income

Expenses:

Hall Street Rental Space Projected Income Statement

Utilities-Electric
Taxes
Management Fees
Brokerage Fee

Total Expenses

Net Income

Cummulative

$ 21,300 % 21,300 $ 21,300
3,600 3,600 3,600
4,765 5,003 5,253
2,130 2,130 2,130
3,195 - -
13,690 10,733 10,983
$ 7,610 § 10,567 $ 10,317
$ 7,610 $ 18,177 % 28,494

82




LEASE

THIS LEASE, made this 26" day of June, 2012, by and between the TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER DEPARTMENT, a Michigan municipal electric utility, of 1131 Hastings Street,
Traverse City, Michigan 49684 (“Landlord”) and, POTTERS FINE PASTRIES, INC., a Michigan
profit corporation, and MICHAEL POTTER, and KATHLEEN POTTER, jointly and severally, of
908 E. 8" Street, Traverse City, Michigan 49686, (“Tenant”).

WITNESSETH:

ARTICLE 1: Premises.

Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, for the term and
on the conditions hereinafter provided, the space consisting of (i) approximately one thousand five
hundred (1,500) square feet of ground floor area, and (ii) five (5) parking spaces, all as depicted on
the plan attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof as Exhibit A, and all appurtenances
thereto, located in the building owned by Landlord situated in the City of Traverse City, State of
Michigan, and generally known as 130 Hall Street. Tenant acknowledges that access to and use of
the parking spaces may not be available during the National Cherry Festival or during emergency or
maintenance situations occurring at or near Landlords property, including the James P Price
Trap/Transfer Harvest Facility. Landlord shall, when possible, provide Tenant advance notice of
such situations.

The space described above and leased to Tenant is hereinafter called the “premises” and the
structure on such premises enclosing the ground floor area is hereinafter called the “building.”

ARTICLE 2: Use.

The building is hereby leased for retail or office purposes. The parking spaces are hereby
leased only for parking.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, it is expressly understood that
Landlord shall not be construed or held to be a joint venturer, partner, or associate of Tenant in the
conduct of'its business, the relationship between the parties hereto being at all times that of landlord

83




and tenant, and it is also agreed that Tenant shall be under no obligation or duty to continuously
operate its business at the premises.

ARTICLE 3: Term.

The premises are hereby leased to Tenant to have and to hold for a term commencing on the
“Commencement Date” (as herein defined) and continuing for a partial month, if any, and three (3)
years, unless said term shall be terminated earlier or extended, as provided in this lease.

Provided that Tenant is not in default under this Lease during the original term and Tenant
gives proper notice, Tenant shall have the option to extend this lease agreement for one additional
term of five (5) years by providing Landlord written notice of its exercise of this option to renew not
less than 90 days before the end of the original term. The additional term shall be of the same terms
and conditions as this lease agreement, except for the provisions regarding rent and additional rent
which shall be modified as noted in Article 7.

ARTICLE 4: Delivery of Possession.,

June 29, 2012 shall be the “Commencement Date” and the date of delivery of the premises to
Tenant. After signing this lease, Tenant may enter the premises and perform, at its expense, all such
work previously approved by Landlord, and to equip the premises with such trade fixtures and
personal property necessary or desirable for such purposes. All such work by Tenant shall be done in
a good and first-class workmanlike manner and in accordance with all applicable laws, ordinances
and building codes.

ARTICLE 5: Security Deposit.

Upon signing, Tenant shall pay Landlord a security deposit of One Thousand Seven Hundred
Seventy Five Dollars ($1,775.00) within 30 days thereof, which may be commingled and used by
Landlord, but an equivalent amount shall be applied upon vacancy by Tenant to cover any damage
caused by Tenant or its invitees or applied to unpaid rent at the Landlord’s discretion.

ARTICLE 6: Rent.

Throughout the term hereof, Tenant covenants and agrees rent shall be made payable to
Landlord, and delivered to Schmidt-Rogers Management, LLC at 996 Garfield Woods Dr., Suite D,
Traverse City, MI 49686 or at such other address as Landlord shall from time to time designate by
written notice to Tenant. The fixed Base Rent for the premises shall be as follows:

(a)  June 29,2012 — July 31,2012 $0
August 1, 2012 — July 31, 2013 $21,300.00/12 = $1,775.00/mo
August 1, 2013 - July 31, 2014 $21,300.00/12 = $1,775.00/mo
August 1, 2014 — July 31, 2015 $21,300.00/12 = $1,775.00/mo

84




(b)  Rent shall be due and payable, in advance, on the first day of the month.

In addition to Base Rent, all amounts that Tenant is required to pay to Landlord under this
Lease, other than Base Rent, shall be deemed additional rent and referred to as Additional Rent.
Base Rent and Additional Rent shall be referred to collectively as Rent. All Additional Rent due
under this Lease shall be payable concurrently with the monthly installments of Base Rent, unless
Landlord expressly in writing sets forth another time period for the payment of such Additional Rent.
Such Additional rent shall consist of the following:

(a) UTILITIES as outlined in Article 13.

(b)  FEES/INTEREST - If any rent or additional rent is not paid within 5 days of the due
date, Tenant shall pay a late payment charge of One Hundred dollars (§100.00) for each such late
payment, together with six percent (6%) per annum interest on all payments more than 30 days
delinquent. In addition, Lessee shall pay a twenty-five dollar $25.00 returned check fee.

(c) DAMAGES as outlined in Article 8 (b).

ARTICLE 7: Rent During Option Period.

Base Rent during the option period shall be adjusted annually based upon any increases in the
Consumer Price Index in accordance with the following procedure:

(a) The index to be used for this adjustment shall be the Consumer Price Index (CPI
“U”), Midwest Urban, All Items (Unadjusted), 1982-84 equaling a base of 100, from the U.S.
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Washington, D.C.).

(b)  The Base Period Consumer Price Index is the index for the month of lease
commencement. The Consumer Price Index for the third month preceding the beginning of the new
option period and each year thereafter for which an adjustment is being determined shall be the
“Adjustment Period Consumer Price Index.”

(©) The Base Rent to be paid during each year of the option period following the initial
lease term shall be determined in accordance with the following formula: The Adjustment Period
Consumer Price Index shall be divided by the Base Period Consumer Price Index and the quotient
derived thereby shall then be multiplied by the Base Rent paid during the initial lease period as stated
in Article 3. The resulting product shall be the adjusted Base Rent for the option period for which an
adjusted monthly rental is being computed.

(d)  Ifthe Consumer Price Index is, at any time during the initial or any renewal term of
this Lease, discontinued by the Government, then the most nearly comparable index shall be
substituted for the purpose of the aforesaid calculations.

85




(e) However, at no time shall the above noted CPI adjustment result in a decrease in rent.

® The first CPI adjustment at the beginning of the option period shall not exceed 9
percent and each adjustment thereafter shall not exceed 3 percent.

Example: The Base Period Consumer Price Index is the CPI for July 2012. The beginning
of the Option Period is August 2015. The CPI for May 2015 will be the Adjustment Period

Price Index.

If the CPI for July 2012 = 100 and the CPI for May 2015 = 105 then the Adjusted Base Rent
for the first year for the Option Period would be determined as follows:

105/100 = 1.05

The Base Rent for the initial lease year was $21,300.00.

The new Adjusted Base Rent would be $21,300.00 x 1.05 = $22,365.00/12 =
$1,863.75/mo.

ARTICLE 8: Repairs.

(a) Landlord agrees, at Landlord’s own cost and expense, to maintain the exterior of the
building in good and first-class order, condition and state of repair, and to make the following repairs
relating to the premises:

@) all structural repairs;

(i)  all repairs to and replacements of the roof and under flooring;

(iii)  all repairs to the exterior of the premises and the building, including
sidewalks adjoining same;

(iv)  remove snow from the parking spaces leased herein;
v) all repairs and replacements to utilities systems and sewer lines;
(vi)  all repairs to any fire sprinkling main and system servicing the premises;

(vii)  all repairs to the interior of the premises if the need therefore arose as a result
of Landlord’s act or failure to act;

(b) The Landlord shall not be responsible or liable to the tenant for any loss or
damage resulting to the Tenant’s property or to the Tenant from bursting, stoppage or leaking of
water, gas, sewer, and sprinkler or steam pipes. Nor shall the Landlord be responsible for any

86




repairs necessary by the acts of the Tenant, its employees or invitees.

(c) Except as herein above provided, Tenant shall take good care of the premises, shall
replace broken glass and shall do the work required to maintain the premises, the storefront and the
fixtures and equipment therein, including the plumbing and electrical systems located in and serving
the premises, in good working order, except in cases of damage and injury arising under the
provisions of Articles 17 and 18 hereof. Tenant agrees to repair all damages caused by Tenant or its
invitees. Tenant further agrees to remove snow from the sidewalk in front of the building along Hall
Street between driveways.

(d) If Landlord fails to make any of the repairs or to timely perform any of the other
obligations required of Landlord under this lease within thirty (30) days after written notice from
Tenant of the necessity therefore, Tenant, in addition to any other rights or remedies available to it
hereunder, at law or in equity, shall have the right, but not the obligation, after notice and
consultation with Landlord to make said repairs or to perform such obligations on behalf of Landlord
and to deduct the entire cost thereof from rent due or to become due hereunder. If, in an emergency
in Tenant’s opinion, any such repairs are immediately necessary for the proper use, enjoyment or
preservation of the premises, no prior thirty (30) days’ notice shall be required but Tenant shall give
Landlord whatever notice is reasonable in the circumstances and may forthwith make said repairs on
behalf of Landlord and deduct the entire cost thereof from rent due or to become due hereunder.

(e) At the end, expiration or other termination of the term hereby granted, Tenant shall
promptly and fully vacate the premises and deliver up the premises in good order and condition,
reasonable wear and tear and damage by casualty, fire, condemnation, the elements or Landlord
excepted. Tenant shall promptly repair any damages to the premises or building caused by Tenant,
its employees, agents or invitees, including but not limited to damage caused by removal of fixtures.
Tenant shall promptly remove all of its personal property and fixtures.

ARTICLE 9: Compliance With Public Authorities.

Tenant shall during the term hereby granted comply with all statutes, ordinances, rules,
orders, regulations or requirements of the federal, state and local governments which must be
complied with by reason of the nature of the use of the premises by Tenant, and shall also comply
with and execute all rules, orders and regulations issued or made by the Board of Fire Underwriters
for the prevention of fires, which must be complied with by reason of the nature of the use of the
premises by the Tenant. In no event, however, shall Tenant be required to make structural repairs or
installations, to install a fire sprinkling system in the premises or to remove any asbestos-containing
material or other hazardous substance existing at the premises, it being understood and agreed all
such work shall be Landlord’s responsibility at its own expense if the same shall be necessary to
comply with the aforesaid statutes, ordinances, rules, orders, regulations or requirements.

87




ARTICLE 10: Increase in Insurance.

Tenant shall not use or occupy the premises or permit the same to be used or occupied for any
business or purpose deemed hazardous on account of fire or otherwise, and, if by reason of the use
and occupancy of the premises hereunder the rate of fire insurance on the building in which the
premises are located shall be increased, Tenant will, on demand, pay to Landlord the amount of such
increase. Landlord, prior to making any demand therefore, shall give Tenant ten (10) days’ written
notice of any such future increased insurance premiums and an opportunity to cure the condition
which caused such increase.

ARTICLE 11: Access to Premises.

Landlord, and its duly authorized agents and representatives, shall have the right, following
reasonable prior notice to Tenant (except in the case of an emergency), to enter into and upon the
premises during Tenant’s business hours for the purpose of examining the same or making such
repairs therein as may be necessary for the safety and preservation thereof.

Landlord shall have the right, following 24 hour notice to Tenant, during Tenant’s business
hours, to show the premises to persons wishing to purchase the building, and shall also have the
right, following reasonable notice to Tenant, during the three (3) months preceding the expiration of
the term hereby granted and during Tenant’s business hours, to show the premises to persons wishing
to rent the premises. Reasonable notice shall include telephone call, voicemail, email, facsimile or
standard mail.

Landlord agrees that any entry by it into the building shall be done in such a manner so as not
to unreasonably interfere with the conduct of normal business operations therein. Landlord shall
exert its best efforts to perform any and all work expeditiously and agrees to keep all interruptions to
Tenant’s business to a minimum. If as a result of any entry by Landlord into the building it is
necessary to Tenant to suspend business operations therein, then rent shall abate for the period of
time normal business operations are suspended.

ARTICLE 12: Alterations and Signs.

(a)  Tenant shall provide Landlord with a proposal for any and all alterations to the
Premises. Landlord shall approve, disapprove or conditionally approve such proposals within 45
days. Landlord reserves the right to contract for the performance of such alteration and to pay
contractors in the first instance. In those situations where Landlord contracts for the alterations
Tenant agrees to reimburse Landlord within 20 days of presentation of an invoice.

In all instances Tenant is responsible for obtaining bids for desired alteration work
and selecting the desired contractor(s). Landlord reserves the right to approve the use of all vendors
selected by Tenant to perform alterations.

88




(b) All alterations, additions and improvements made by Tenant upon the premises shall
remain upon the premises at the termination of this lease, except that any trade fixtures, furniture,
equipment, signs and other personal property installed by Tenant in the premises during the term
hereof shall be removed by Tenant from the premises at Tenant’s cost and expense.

(c) Tenant may from time to time, at its own expense, install and maintain, replace and
relocate on the premises and building its standard identifying signs and lighting effects as are or may
be, from time to time, used or adopted by Tenant. Tenant may place Tenant’s standard
professionally made signs in its windows in accordance with Tenant’s regular advertising and
promotional programs. However, all signs must be approved in advance by Landlord, which
approval will not unreasonably be withheld.

(d) Tenant shall not modify the facade of the building.

(e) In all instances where the Tenant performs or contracts for the performance of
alterations, tenant shall do all work at its own cost and expense and in full accordance with all rules
and regulations of any governmental authority having jurisdiction and shall save Landlord harmless
on account of filing of mechanics’ liens or for any other cause arising from Tenant’s making of such
alterations or installations.

ARTICLE 13: Utilities.

Utilities are the responsibilities of the Tenant. Base Rent will be offset by $300.00/mo as a
result of Tenants taking full responsibility for electric, water and sewer utilities. Any unpaid Tenant
utility bills and/or associated penalties that create a liability to the Landlord or create a lien against
the property may be paid for with any or all of the Security Deposit and Landlord may pursue his
legal and equitable remedies under the law to gain full restitution for any amount in excess of the
Security Deposit.

All dumpsters, if any, shall be placed in one of the tenant's five (5) designated parking spaces
at the back of the building and must be emptied at least once a week.

ARTICLE 14: Taxes.

Commencing with the Commencement Date, Tenant agrees to pay promptly all personal
property taxes which shall include trade fixtures and assessments levied against or based on the
personal property on the premises for and payable during each tax fiscal year thereafter occurring
during the term of this lease.

ARTICLE 15: Insurance.

(a) Landlord represents that it is currently carrying and that throughout the term of this
lease, Landlord shall carry fire and extended coverage insurance in so-called “all risk” form upon the

89




building and improvements thereof. Such coverage shall include damage by fire and other casualty
typically covered under an “all risk” policy in the vicinity of the building, but in all events to include
coverage for collapse, vandalism, water damage and sprinkler leakage, comprehensive boiler and
machinery insurance and flood and earthquake insurance. Throughout the term of this lease,
Landlord shall also carry a comprehensive general liability insurance policy with limits of liability of
not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) covering the building and all common areas thereon or
appurtenances thereto.

(b) Tenant agrees to keep the premises insured under a comprehensive general liability
policy, with single policy limits of not less than $1,000,000 for personal injuries and $250,000 for
property damage, and shall deliver to Landlord a certificate of such insurance naming Landlord as an
“additional insured.”

ARTICLE 16: Waiver of Subrogation.

Each of the parties hereto hereby waives any and all rights of action for negligence against
the other party hereto which may hereafter arise during the term hereof for damage to the building or
to the property therein resulting from any fire or other casualty of the kind covered by standard fire
insurance policies with extended coverage, regardless of whether or not, or in what amounts, such
insurance is now or may hereafter be carried by the parties hereto, or either of them.

ARTICLE 17; Fire & Casualty Damage.

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (c) hereof, if during the term hereof the premises or
the building shall be damaged in whole or in part by fire or other casualty, Landlord shall, proceeding
with all reasonable diligence and at its expense, repair the damage and restore the premises and the
building to the same condition as existed immediately prior to such damage.

(b) Tenant shall be entitled to an abatement of all rent and charges to the extent and for
the period during which the premises are untenantable or incapable of Tenant’s normal use, such
abatement to continue until the first to occur of (i) the date Tenant re-opens in the premises for its
normal business, or (ii) one hundred twenty (120) days following the date on which Landlord
completes its repair and restoration pursuant to paragraph (a) above. Itis further agreed that the term
of this lease shall, at Tenant’s option, be extended by the same number of days as normal business
shall not have been conducted in the premises due to the damage or destruction.

(c)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the premises or the building shall be damaged or
destroyed by fire or other casualty and the damage is of such a nature that it cannot be reasonably
restored with the exercise of due diligence within ninety (90) days following the date of damage,
then either Landlord or Tenant may terminate this lease by notice given to the other within forty five
(45) days after the date of the damage.

(d)  Ifthis lease shall be terminated as aforesaid, then this lease shall terminate and come

90




to an end as of the date of the damage giving rise to such termination with the same force and effect
in all respects as if such termination was the expiration date set forth herein, and rent and other
charges payable hereunder shall be apportioned and paid up to the date of said damage and any
prepaid unearned rent and other charges payable hereunder shall forthwith be repaid by Landlord to
Tenant.

ARTICLE 18: Condemnation.

(a) In the event that during the term of this lease the building or any part thereof, or the
use, possession or access thereof, is taken in condemnation proceedings, by any right of eminent
domain or for any public or quasi-public use, this lease and the term hereby granted shall terminate
and expire on the date when possession shall be taken by the condemning authorities, and rent and all
other charges payable hereunder shall be apportioned and paid in full up to that date and all prepaid
unearned rent and all other charges payable hereunder shall forthwith be repaid by Landlord to
Tenant. As of such date of taking, this lease shall be deemed terminated and of no further force and
effect and neither Landlord nor Tenant shall be liable to the other for any future rent or other charges
payable hereunder.

(b)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if only a part of the building shall be so taken or
condemned, and, in Tenant’s reasonable opinion, the remaining portion of the building shall be
adequate and suitable for the purposes of its business, then this lease shall continue in full force and
effect except that the annual rent and other charges payable hereunder shall be reduced in the
proportion that the gross floor area of the part so taken or condemned shall bear to the total gross
floor area of the building immediately prior to such taking. In such case, Landlord shall, at
Landlord’s cost and expense, as speedily as circumstances permit, repair all damage to the premises
and the building as shall have been caused by such partial condemnation and taking (including, but
not limited to, the basic building, the storefront and all glass therein). Rent and all other charges
payable hereunder shall abate until the premises have been restored to a tenantable condition,
including a reasonable period after the completion of Landlord’s reconstruction for Tenant to re-
fixture and restock the premises. Tenant hereby waives all rights in condemnation awards, except
awards for Tenant’s fixtures and equipment and any separate awards which may be made for
Tenant’s relocation expenses, value of improvements and the like.

ARTICLE 19; Subordination of Lease and Non-Disturbance.

This lease shall be subject and subordinate to the lien of any bank or institutional mortgage or
mortgages or bond covenants now or hereafter in force against the land and building of which the
premises are a part, and to all advances made upon the security thereof, provide the holder of such
mortgage or deed of trust shall execute and deliver to Tenant an agreement in recordable form that it
will recognize this lease and all of Tenant’s rights hereunder and not disturb Tenant’s possession of
the premises in the event of foreclosure or the exercise of any other right or remedy if Tenant is not
then in default hereunder beyond the expiration of all applicable grace, notice and cure periods.
Tenant agrees to execute such further instrument or instruments as may be necessary to subordinate
this lease to the lien of any such mortgage or deed of trust.

91




ARTICLE 20: Assignment/Subletting.

Tenant shall not have the right to assign this lease or to sublease.

ARTICLE 21: Default.

(a) It is covenanted and agreed that if (i) Tenant shall default in the payment of the rent or
any item of additional rent, or any part of either, and such default shall continue for fifteen (15) days
after written notice to Tenant, or (ii) Tenant shall default in fulfilling any of the other covenants of
this lease and such default shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof
from Landlord specifying such default, and such default shall thereafter continue beyond such period
as is reasonably necessary to correct such default and Tenant is not diligently occupied in correcting
the same, or (iii) the estate hereby created shall be taken on execution or by other process of law, or
(iv) Tenant shall petition for bankruptcy or become insolvent according to law, or (v) any assignment
shall be made of the property of Tenant for the benefit of creditors, and if a receiver, guardian,
conservator, trustee in bankruptcy or other similar officer shall be appointed to take charge of all or
any substantial part of Tenant’s property by a court of competent jurisdiction, Landlord lawfully
may, immediately or at any time thereafter, upon prior written notice, enter into and upon the
premises or any part thereof in the name of the whole, and repossess the same as of its former estate,
and expel Tenant, and those claiming through or under it, and remove its or their effects without
prejudice to any remedies which might otherwise be used for arrears of rent or preceding breach of
covenant. Upon entry as aforesaid this lease shall terminate. Tenant covenants and agrees,
notwithstanding any entry or re-entry by Landlord, whether by summary proceedings, termination or
otherwise, to pay and be liable for on the days originally fixed herein for the payment thereof,
amounts equal to the rent, additional rent, and other charges under the terms of this lease, when those
become due as if this lease had not been terminated, or as if Landlord had not entered or re-entered,
and whether the premises be relet or remain vacant, in whole or in part, for the remainder of the term
or for a period less than the remainder of the term. If the premises are relet by Landlord, Tenant shall
be entitled to a credit in the net amount of rent received by Landlord in reletting the premises, after
deduction of all reasonable expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable brokerage fees, and
the like), and in collecting the rent in connection therewith. In the event of termination by Landlord
as aforesaid, Landlord agrees to use reasonable efforts to relet the premises so as to minimize the
damages suffered by Landlord and payable by Tenant.

(b)  IfLandlord shall fail to perform any of its obligations under this lease and as a result
thereof Tenant closes its business operations on the premises, then, in such event, all rent and other
payments required to be made by Tenant under this lease shall abate until such time as Tenant shall
be able to reopen the premises for business.

ARTICLE 22: Miscellaneous Provisions.

(a) Notices. Whenever by the terms of this lease any notice, request, demand or other
communication shall or may be given, either to Landlord or to Tenant, the same must be in writing,
and shall be sent by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested), postage prepaid, or shall be
delivered by private overnight carrier or by messenger service as follows:

10

92




Ifto Landlord:  addressed to Traverse City Light & Power Dept. ¢/o Schmidt-
Rogers Management, LLC at 996 Garfield Woods Dr., Suite D,
Traverse City, MI 49686 (or to such address or addresses as may
from time to time hereafter be designated by Landlord by like
notice);

If to Tenant: addressed to Tenant at the address set forth on the first page of
this lease until occupancy and then at the premises, (or to such
other address or addresses as may from time to time hereafter be
designated by Tenant by like notice).

Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, all such notices shall be effective when
actually received or refused by the party to whom it is addressed.

(b)  Force Majeure. In the event that either party shall be prevented, delayed or hindered
in the performance of any of its obligations under this lease due to strikes, lockouts, labor disputes,
acts of God, inability to obtain labor or materials or reasonable substitutes therefore, enemy or hostile
governmental action, riot, civil commotion, fire or other casualty, or any cause otherwise beyond the
reasonable control of the party obligated to perform (excluding the financial inability of such party to
perform), such event shall excuse the performance of such party for a period equal to any such
prevention, delay or stoppage; provided, however, the foregoing shall not be applicable to the
payment of rent or other sums due pursuant to this lease.

(c) Holdover. Any statute, law, custom or practice to the contrary notwithstanding, this
lease and the term hereby granted shall in any event terminate, expire and come to an end on the date
herein specified for the termination thereof, without notice of any kind from either party to the other.
In the event Tenant holds over after said date except under a renewal of this lease as hereinafter
provided, then and in such event Tenant shall be deemed a month to month Tenant and at one and a
half (1.5) times the current monthly fixed rental and otherwise on the same terms as herein provided.

(d)  Legal Costs. Inthe event of any lawsuit, action or proceeding by either of the parties
hereto against the other by reason of any matter or thing arising out of this lease, the prevailing party
shall recover from the other its costs and expenses relating thereto including not only its legal costs
but actual attorneys’ fees for the maintenance or defense of said action, suit or proceeding.

(e) No Waiver. A waiver by either party of any breach or failure by the other to perform
any of the covenants, agreements or conditions of this lease shall not bar the enforcement of any
other rights or remedies for any subsequent breach or failure of any of the same or other covenants,
agreements or conditions.

63) Estoppel Certificates. Landlord and Tenant agree, on the written request of the other,
to provide each other promptly, with a written statement certifying the status of the lease, the dates of
commencement or expiration hereof, the rentals payable hereunder, the existence (if any) of any
defaults hereunder and/or any other matter or thing reasonably requested with regard to this lease or
the effectiveness hereof.

11

93




(g2)  Provisions Binding. Except as specifically stated herein, this lease and all of the
terms and provisions hereof shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto
and their respective successors and assigns.

(h)  Recording. This lease shall not be recorded. However, upon request of either
Landlord or Tenant, the parties agree to enter into a short form notice of lease (in form proper for
recording), which instrument may be recorded by, and at the expense of, the party so requesting.

(1) Law To Govern. This lease shall be governed by and construed pursuant to the laws
of the state of Michigan, as such laws may exist from time to time during the term hereof.

)] Transmittal of Lease. Notwithstanding any actions to the contrary, the transmittal of
this lease and any discussion thereof by the parties is not a binding legal agreement, and this lease
shall be effective only upon actual execution and delivery thereof by both of the parties hereto.

(k)  Entire Agreement/Invalidity. This lease contains and embraces the entire agreement
between the parties hereto and may not be changed or terminated orally or by any agreement unless
such agreement shall be in writing and signed by the party against whom enforcement of such change
or termination is sought. If any term, clause or provision of this lease shall be judged to be invalid,
the validity of any other term, clause or provision hereof shall not be affected thereby.

D Headings. It is agreed that the headings of the various paragraphs herein are for
reference only and are not to be construed as part of this agreement.

(m)  Electronic Documents. After this lease has been duly signed, delivered and received,
by either party to the other party by means of telecopy (fax) transmission or attached to an email (or
similar electronic transmission) in an unalterable image format, this lease shall be considered as
validly delivered as the physical delivery of the signed lease in paper form. In addition, it is further
understood that this lease may be imaged and stored electronically and introduced as evidence in any
proceeding as if an original business record; and neither party will object to the admissibility of such
an image as evidence in any proceeding on account of having been stored electronically.

(n) Grease Pits. At no time shall tenant have a grease pit within the building or on the
premises.

12

94




IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, each of the parties has caused this instrument to be.executed on
the day and year first above written.

LANDLORD:
WITNESS: TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
DEPARTMENT

Edward E. Rice, Executive Director

WITNESS: TENANT:

By:

Micheal Potter, individually and as President
of Potters Fine Pastries, Inc.

By:
Kathleen Potter
APPROVED AS TO FORM
W. Peter Doren, Esq.
Traverse City Light & Power
General Counsel
13

95




-




RO

97



98



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 26, 2012

TRAVERSE CITY

'LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board f'i (Z{

From: Ed Rice, Executive Director
Date: June 21, 2012
Subject: Executive Directors Hiring Authority Policy

Attached is a proposed policy for your consideration that would give authorization to the Director to
employ temporary employees from time-to-time as he/she deems necessary for the efficient
operations of the utility. While the City Charter requires the Director to determine staffing levels for
the utility’s operations, it also requires Board approval before such employees may be hired.

In the past, all regular full and part-time employees are identified on an organizational chart
approved by the Board. Also, job descriptions and pay ranges are also approved by the Board for
those positions. That practice would continue.

Temporary/seasonal employees are those employees that would work not more than 6 months or in
excess of 1,000 hours in any consecutive 12 month period; those employees would not be afforded
any employee benefits that are offered to regular full and part-time employees.

Staff recommends that the Board adopt the attached policy. If after Board discussion you agree with

staff’s recommendation the following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY )

THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD ADOPTS THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HIRING AUTHORITY POLICY.

99




Light and Power Department
City of Traverse City, MI
Adopted:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HIRING AUTHORITY POLICY

As required by Chapter XVIII of the Traverse City Charter, the Executive Director of Traverse
City Light & Power Department is responsible for determining the number of employees
necessary for the operation of the utility, and shall fix their duties and compensation subject to
approval of the Light & Power Board. Further, the Executive Director shall have such authority
as delegated by the Board.

Due to varying workloads as occurs from time-to-time because of specific capital projects or
seasonal utility work, efficient operation of the utility may require temporary, seasonal, or
temporary part-time employees.

It shall be the policy of the Light & Power Board that the Executive Director be delegated the
authority to employ temporary, seasonal, or temporary part-time employees at his/her discretion
and shall fix the duties and hourly wages of said employees; provided, however, that such
employees not be afforded the typical compensation benefits package afforded to the utility’s
regular bargaining or administrative employee’s.

Edward E. Rice
Executive Director and Secretary
Traverse City Light and Power Board

Page 1 of 1

100




€89 11O S POWER

To: Light and Power Board
From: Karen Feahr, Energy Supply Manager f\/gﬁ
Date: June 20, 2012

Subject: LBW&L Annual Power Purchase

At the request of Board Member Snodgrass, a presentation will be given to the Board
with an explanation of how annual purchases from the Lansing Board of Water & Light
are determined. The presentation will summarize 1) the purchase requirements of the
Power Purchase Agreement between Light & Power and Lansing Board of Water &
Light, 2) the forecasting information L&P uses and 3) the process used to determine
how much power to purchase from LBW&L within the allowed parameters.

101




Jeah Jepus|ed Jusnbasqns ay} Jo Yjuow yoes ioj passAljep
9q 0] %00|q yoes Jspun ABissus Jo Ayjuenb ayy jo IangT Aliou [jeys
dTOL Jesh yoes jo | JeqoioQ Ag — syuswalinbay Buiinpayosg ABisug o

‘Ajuo sunoy yead-uo Joj
MIN 0L 01 0 Jo Ayuenb pexi4 — Ayuenp ABisug yoolg uondo Bunjesd

‘Ajuo sinoy yead
-Uo Joj MIAI G 03 / 1o Ayuenb paxi4 - Aijueny ABisug yoojg Bunjead

‘Jeah ayj Jo unoy
Aians 1o} pMIAI 0Z 01 01 Jo Auenb paxi4 — Ajpuenp ABiauz yoo0|g aseg

¥o01g uondo Bupjesd
pue xo0|g Bunjesd Yoo|g eseg — sjuawaldinbay Atoaljeg ABiaug e

(sJesA G) GLOZ ‘L€ Joqweoad — 110z ‘| Aenuep - wiaj e

T8MET ANV d®101
N3I3IML3g
LNINIFTHOV ISYHOUNd ¥3IMOd

102



(P
(-

Lv98 S8EB €218 L98L 66GL LEEL SL0L €189 LGS9 6829 209 G9.G €0SS Lies

8.6V LLLv SSY¥ €6L¥ LE6E 699 LOVE SPLE €882 LZ9Z BSET L60Z GE8) €IS LLEL 6v0L /8L 62§ €9¢ |

peoT sseoxg g

jsisim

lleqdwen o

ZLOZAD AND esisnes]




ol

Sl

0c

14

0g

Se

N

oL

Oc

S¢

oe

PEOT e 1do Yead ——1

desd 1

aseg——1

- sY90|g 3|qIXa|d

- G¢g

Jdy




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 26, 2012

gST. 1972

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board (
From: Jim Cooper, Manager of Communications & Energy Services;)Z/

Date: June 21, 2012
Subject: Solar Rate

L&P staff has been investigating photo voltaic (pv) generation possibilities for this area.
The project questions involve: public or private ownership, available government grants,
the disposition of the renewable energy credits or RECs, the possibility of carbon offset
purchases by non-L&P customers, and location. The initial interest in solar generation
came from both L&P customers and customers of other utilities. The current capital plan
contains $350,000 for the solar project. The considered project size is 50 kW at an
installed cost of $250,000 before interest, O & M, distribution, and other costs are added.

Discussions with municipal solar project owners in California, Colorado, Washington, and
Arizona have shown that there are many different programs. All government grants for
municipal utilities, which allowed for reduced capital costs, expired last year. After further
analysis by SEEDS and staff it was decided that the least complicated approach was to
pursue the very successful Green Rate concept as initially established for the first L&P
wind turbine in 1996. The basic format includes the following:

° All project costs to be recovered through subscribing customers only

o Participation is by purchase of 100 kwWh Sun Blocks as a premium on their
monthly bill
o This 100 kWh purchase replaces 100 kWh of mostly coal generation

° Customers can purchase more than one Sun Block

° The program is open to both residential and commercial customers

) 59 customers would need to sign up to cover the program costs

Total project costs are based on a 25 year panel life and include: O&M, the cost of money,
a major component contingency fund, and distribution charges. Based on this analysis the
100 kWh Sun Block premium would be $15.90 per month. The customer would also
continue to pay his/her full regular bill so the actual total cost for the 100 kWh is closer to
$25.90. This reflects the total true costs.

Staff will discuss this memo, and variables such as location, timing, and the changing solar
industry at the meeting. A typical foot print for a 50 kW solar pv system would require
around two acres.

105




[/
B
7,
)

City Planning Department

I

P e

TO: | R. BEN BIFOSS, CITY MANAGER
FROM: RUSS SOYRING, PLANNING DIRECTOR @5@(@4 g
SUBJECT: " PUBLIC UTILITIES ELEMENT FOR DISTRIBUTION /ﬁ(\
DATE: ‘ May 24, 2012

on of the City Master Plan in 2009, the Planning Commission has been working on

Since the adopti
port documents of the Master Plan

several “Plan Elements”. These Plan Elements or subplans are sup
and provide more detail plans for various planning functions.

According to the approval process outlined in the Michigan Planning Enabling Act Plan Elements, Sub
Commission to distribute plans to interested governmental

Plans must receive permission from the City
on have

entities. East Bay and Garfield Townships, BATA and the Grand Traverse County Road Commissi
indicated interest in reviewing the Plan Elements.

2, the Planning Commission recommended to the City Commission that the draft Public

On May 16, 201
s. With approval to distribute, the

Utilities Element be released to interested governmental entitie
interested governmental entities would have at least 42 days to respond to the draft Element.

Following the 42-day waiting period for comments, the Planfing Commission would hold a public
hearing to approve the Plan Element. According to the Tréverse City Master Plan, each Plan Element
would need to be adopted by the City Commission wit ‘the exception of the Historic Resource Element

that would be adopted by the Historic Districts Com ission.

Please forward the Planning Commission’s requegt to allow the Public Utilities Element to be distributed

to interested governmental entities.

RS/ml

Attachment: Draft Public Utilities Element

Yo day? from é/"///”1

106




Memorandum | T‘he City of Traverse City

To: Russ Soyting, City Planner _ . L
~ From: William*E. Twietmeyer, City Treasurer/Finance Director W.E T,
‘Subject: Public Utllity Plan Element .
. Date: - = May9,2012

The Public Utility Plan Elements were reviewed at the Planning Commission study
_ session on March 21, 2012.  Many of the suggested revisions were incorporated in the’
final document as. attached. In addition, the document went through several reviews for
grammar and typographical errors. Below is a summation of our goals and objectives for -
the Public Utility Plan ’Elemeé\lt. ' Co o

The Public Utility Plan Element Subcommittee concluded its work and the following
pages are the result of its efforts. ' The subcommittee focused on storm water, sanitary
sewer, W{ater; and electric. . You will note that the introductory paragraph for each of these
sections was taken verbatim from the Natural Resources Element introductory statement. .
We believe that this statement succinctly describes what is most cherished about Traverse
City and is the goal which we aspire to. In addition, it is a common theme that is found = -
' throughout all the public utility elements and was the focus of the members of the
subcommittee. e o E - ‘ :

Our goals were threefold. First, it was our desire to take advantage of the economies of
scale by requiring coordination among these .various utility aspects because they are
interrelated with each other. Second, it was our- desire to emphasize both local control -
and independence because it leads not only to a true. understanding of the cost of
operating these utilities but also the cost to society for niot operating these utilities in the
best manrier. Third, it was our desire to integrate this plan element with the other plan
elements because each plan element is integral to the success of one another.-  ~

In summary, this plan calls out for balance between investment and efficiency, balance
between independence and reliance, and balance between aesthetics and cost. It allows
. the flexibility to sway back and forth between' these categories depending on- the
. circumstances of the day but provides the parameters by which those decisions are made.
It allows for intensity appropriate for the uniqueness of the neighborhoods that exist:
" Pinally, this plan element allows for taking risks while protecting that which we would
not desire to place at risk. All of these describe what Traverse City is today and with

' hope what Traverse City will be in the future.

107




TDRAFET

Public Utility Plan Element — Water

In concert with the Natural Resources Element, the protection of Traverse City’s natural
resources, our Bay Front, the Boardman River, Boardman Lake, the wetlands, the
parklands, rolling hills, and view sheds, are vital to our health, safety, welfare, economy
and quality of life as a community. The Bay and other water sources provide for our
drinking water, residential and commercial uses, fisheries, wildlife habitat and many
recreational uses.

In addition, economic development, growth, and type of development will depend in
great measure on the ability to treat and distribute clean water in the area. To that end,
the general goals and objectives of the Water Plan Flement are:

1. Water rates should encourage water usage consistent with local goals.

2. The treatment system should consist of state of the art technology.

3. An ongoing evaluation and assessment of the distribution system should be
conducted.

4. A continued assessment of the Bulk Water Sale Agreements should be performed
to monitor the demand for water from outside the City through the transmission
system.

5. User rates should be sufficient to provide funds for operational costs and for
maintaining infrastructure and its replacement. The City should make efforts
through revisions to the Bulk Water Sale Agreements to insure that market rates
reflect the total true cost of service.

6. Coordination amongst all City utilities should be insisted for all improvements.

7. Campus plans should include a hydraulic assessment of their impact on the water
transmission and distribution system from the treatment plant.

8. Recognizing that the water utility has a regional impact, the City should be
constantly coordinating with other governmental entities.

108




Public Utility Plan Element - Stormwater

In concert with the Natural Resources Element, the protection of Traverse City’s natural
resources, our Bay Front, the Boardman River, Boardman Lake, the wetlands, the
parklands, rolling hills, and view sheds, are vital to our health, safety, welfare, economy
and quality of life as a community. The Bay and other water sources provide for our
drinking water, residential and commercial uses, fisheries, wildlife habitat and many

recreational uses.

In addition, economic development, growth, and type of development will depend in
great measure on the ability to contain and treat storm water in the area. To that end, the
general goals and objectives of the Stormwater Plan Element are:

1.

[o9]

10.

Water quality is of more importance than the quantity of water being treated.
Coordinate with the Natural Resources Plan Element.

Manage stormwater to reduce deleterious impact on the bay and other bodies of
water,

Conform to Best Management Practices for removal of sediment and other
contaminants from stormwater released into natural water courses,

Strive to contain/retain water on site both to reduce loads on stormwater
infrastructure and to allow sediments to settle out before the water is released.
Monitor the stormwater and sanitary sewer systems for illicit connections and
maintain their separation. ‘ -
Identify a dedicated and sustainable funding mechanism for the operation and
maintenance and capital improvement of the stormwater system.

Require that a Stormwater runoff ordinance be maintained.

Encourage use of the City’s tree canopy and street sweeping efforts where
practicable to assist in natural cleaning of stormwater.

Campus Plans shall include a plan for stormwater management and provide for
the continued repair and maintenance of that system.

Neighborhood Type -~ Level of Treatment -~ Design
SaTC2 o onsie . Lowlmpact -

STC owiememoSwen Ve

TC4 OnsitefTieintoSystem  Moderate/High Impact

TCS ’ o ‘Tiréint(rv)lsys'temi o VerynghImpact -

| Campus Onsite/Tie into System Low/Medium/High Impact

109




Public Utility Plan Element - Sanitary Sewer

In concert with the Natural Resources Element, the protection of Traverse City’s natural
resources, our Bay Front, the Boardman River, Boardman Lake, the wetlands, the
parklands, rolling hills, and view sheds, are vital to our health, safety, welfare, economy
and quality of life as a community. The Bay and other water sources provide for our
drinking water, residential and commercial uses, fisheries, wildlife habitat and many
recreational uses.

In addition, economic development, growth, and type of development will depend in
great measure on the ability to treat waste water in the area. To that end, the general
goals and objectives of the Sanitary Sewer Plan Element are:

L.

2.

v

The treatment system should consist of the most cost effective state of the art
technology.

An ongoing evaluation and assessment of the collection system should be
conducted.

A continued assessment of the Master Sewer Agreement should be performed to
monitor the contribution of flow from outside the City into the collection system.
User rates should be sufficient to provide funds for operational costs and for
maintaining infrastructure and its replacement. The City should make efforts
through revisions to the Master Sewer Agreement to insure that market rates
reflect the total true cost of service.

Coordination amongst all City utilities should be insisted for all improvements.
Campus plans should include a hydraulic assessment of their impact on the
wastewater collection system to the treatment plant. i

Recognizing that the sanitary sewer utility has a regional impact, the City should
be constantly coordinating with other governmental entities.

110




Public Utility Plan Element — Electric

In concert with the Natural Resources Element, the protection of Traverse City’s natural
resources, our Bay Front, the Boardman River, Boardman Lake, the wetlands, the
parklands, rolling hills, and view sheds, are vital to our health, safety, welfare, economy
and quality of life as a community. The function of our water, sanitary sewer, and storm
water utilities are critical in accomplishing the above stated goal and these utilities can
not function properly without a dependable and reliable source of electricity.

In addition, economic development, growth, and type of development will depend in
great measure on the ability to provide reliable and inexpensive electricity. To that end,
the general goals and objectives of the Electric Plan Element are:

1. The electric system should continue its upgrades with state of the art technology.
An ongoing evaluation and assessment of the distribution system should be
conducted.

3. In order to maintain reliability, a system with redundancy is encouraged.

4. In order to provide proper disaster planning, sufficient local iop including
distributive generation should be pursued to ensire the public’s health, safety, and
welfare in the City.

5. Coordination amongst all City utilities should be required for all infrastructure
improvements.

6. Campus plans should include an assessment of electric requirements.

7. User rates should be kept as low as possible as an inducement to all City residents
and businesses to become customers of the City owned electric utility.

8. A balance between aesthetics and cost efficiency should be considered in
determining their benefit to the system as a whole.

9. Encourage energy conservation with incentives for purchasing efficient operating
equipment and fixtures and by educating customers to utilize electricity more
economically.”

Neighborhood Type Distribution Capacity Intensity

TC 1 Minimal Very Low

TC2 Small Low

TC3 Small Low/Moderate

TC 4 Medium Moderate/High

TC 5 Large High

Campus Small/Medium/Large Low/Moderate/High

111




